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Strategic Report

The Directors. in preparing this strategic report, have complied with section 414C of the Companies Act 2006,

Review of operations
Iress LK Holdings Limited and its consoiidated subsidianes (“The Group™ or “Iress” or “the Company”) provide business-critical softwarc solutions
1o banks, wealth managers, financial planners. life insurance companies. brokers and other financial services companies.

The profit after tax for the year was £9.311 million (2018: £12.137 million). The reduction in prefit after lax is driven by an increase in financing
costs relating 1o an existing cross currency swap and the wx charge for the year.

The underlying business has grown during the year from ongoing projects deploving Iress” integrated wealth and trading solution at key clients,
the increased takc vp of business intcHligence products and increased advertising services.

No dividend was declared and paid to Iress International Holdings Proprietary Limited during the year (2018:£Nil). On 28 April 2020, an in specie
dividend of £13.960m was declared and paid.

Future developments
The Directors expect the general level of activity to remain consistent with 2019 in the forthcoming year.

There remains a continued focus on growth across the group and on finalising the transition of the MSQ product to the latest version of the software
and a recurring revenuc model.

Key performance indicators
In order to realise its strategic aims. the Company has identified areas of panicular focus and has put into place a number of Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) to measure and assess progress against them. The fotlowing indicators are calculated for the continuing operations of the Company
and before exceptional items:

2099 RISFE
£'000 1000
Revenue 86,182 82,536
Profit before depreciation. amortisation, interest and income tax expense 26,160 24,290
Net Assets (as at the end of the year) 156,802 148,100

The strong positive net assets position demonstrates the resilience of the Comparty and the growth from 2018 to 2019 reflects its profit generating
capabilities.

Financial Market, Wealth Management and Sourcing (“UK”)
Financial Markets, Wealth Management and Sourcing revenue increased 6% from £66.66% million in 2018 to £70.509 million in 2019, reflecting
ongoing projects to deploy Iress’ integrated wealth and trading solution to key chients

Growth in Sourcing revenue was driven largely by increased take up of data analytics and advertising services.

Lending
The Lending business provides mortgage origination sofiware and associated consulting services to banks and other lending instinutions.

Revenue reduced by 1% from £15.838 million in 2018 to £15.673 million in 2019, reflecting the timing and mix of client projects. The lending
business continued to exhibit strong operational momentum in 2019 with a large tier two lender going live with lress’ Mortgage Sourcing and

Origination platform (M$Ov2), while four other client deployments are progressing well, including 2 new client won in late 2019,

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activitics of the Company during the year.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

Iress UK Holdings Limited, as part of Ircss Limited (listed in Australia),

iress

has an active and robust corporate governance programmge designed to

manage strategic and tactical risks which could impact the business. Risks are clearly identified and monitored on a regular basis.

Although resources are devoted to developing efficient procedures and to stafT training, it is only possible 1o be reasonably, but not absolutely

certain that such procedures will be effective in preventing fraud.

The key risks and uncertainties currently facing Iress Limited relate to the ability of other subsidiary companies in the Group to manage competitor

and operational risk effectively.

Information Due 1o the nature of Iress’ business, the Group could be

security impacted significantly by the failure of critical systems,
breach and whether caused by error or malicious attack.

failure of

critical

systems

Iress has increased its investment in information security in recent years in
response to several factors inctuding the increased sophistication of cyber
terrotists, the increased reliance ot our solutions by our customers and
increased regulatory pressure from government agencies,

Iress has a dedicated information security function across jurisdictions, Board
oversight through the parent company’s Audit & Risk Committee and
executive oversight via the Executive Risk Committee and Chief Information
Security Officer.

Iress’ controls, audit and governance provide a framework for actively
identifying gaps, new exposures and the development of appropriate treatment
plans.

Network and malware scanning and mandatory information security
awareness training is in place across the business.

Comprehensive disaster recovery procedures are in place.

Iress Global Information Security Management System (ISMS) is certified by
independent audit to mect the global ISO 27001 standard.

Economic Economic conditions, domestically and internationally,

This nisk is mitigated by Iress’ diverse geographic presence and diverse

public focus, media attention and govemment review. The
use of technology within financial services businesses, and
especially its role in processing and storing sensitive
personal information, can expose both the financial
services provider and providers of technology such as
Iress, (o reputational nisk if there is a failure in a critical
system or pracess or the release by error

or mischief of personal data.

climate can impact client revenue and accordingly, client demand | product pertfolio.
for Iress” systems
The impact of COVID-19 is mitigated by the recurring revenuc base and cash
The impact of COVID-19 on the Group s considered on | generative nature of the Group and its parent.
pages 7 and 8.
Regulation Regulation can tmpact Iress and its clicnts because | Iress’ risk management strategy includes the close monitoring of regulatory
regulation increases the cost of doing business, or because | developments globatly.
regulation results in structural changes, mcluding
conseolidation or fragmentation, both of which can | Iress is pro-actively engaged in the development of new and existing
negatively impact Iress client engagements. relationships with relevant regulatory stakeholders, policy makers, and media
groups to monitor the regulatory landscape.
This strategy is focused on limiting potential impacts of regulatory
development so that Iress may continue to service its global markets and
cfficiently respond 1o compliance requests.
Market or The risk that a pronounced shift in technology or a | Iress endeavours to manage this risk by maintaining a highly skilled and
technology proneunced change in the way market segments organise | educated technology organisation and by exploring the potential utilisation or
risk themselves and make use of Iress’ products or solutions. impact of emerging technologies.
Iress endeavours to manage market change by maintaining a high degree of
engagement with its customers. In thig regard Iress is fortunate that its
customer base, being distributed geographically and being comprised of
highly sophisticated industry repr ives, is likely to be at the forefront of
industry change and evoelution.
Reputation Tress provides solutiens to the financial services industry. | Mitigation of technology risk lies at the heart of Iress’ information security
Risk The financial scrvices industry is subject to significant | function {refer to comments above under Information Security) and software

development practices. The latter includes rigour in architecture, code
development and testing. Iress does not outsource development of core
technology, maintaining direct oversight and control.
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Strategic Report (continucd)

Section 172

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a director of 2 company to act in the way he or she considers. in good faith, would most likely
promote the success of the company for the bencfit of its members as a whole.

The Directors are mindful of their duty to promote the success of the Group and believe they have acted in the way they consider, in good faith,
would he most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its members as a whole,

The Directors consider that in addition to the Parent company and their sharcholders, the key stakeholders are the employees, customers, suppliers
and community. The [Jirectors take seriously the views of these stakeholders in setting and implementing strategy.

In carrying out this duty, they have had regards for, amongst other matters, the areas set owt below.

Consequences of any decision in the long term

The ultimate Parent Company Board Members and Leadership Team meet regularly to discuss and challenge the ongoing strategy for the business.
The local Management Team (including local directors} also meet regularly to challenge and deploy this strategy in the UK. Outputs from these
meetings drive the context for decisions on the annual forecasts which are reviewed for both the following and next four years o reflect the strategic

direction of the business.

Parent Company shareholdery
The Group forms part of bi-annual reporting to the ASX by the ultimate Paremt, Iress Ltd.

Investors are given access to the Parent company CF( and CEOQ threugh investor conferences.
A suite of information on the ultimate parent is available at https:/iwww iress.com/resources/investors/

Employees
The Board receives reports taken from the annual Pulse employee survey to ensure the Group’s values are understood and promoted.

During the year, the policy of providing cmployees with information, including infermation relating to the cconomic and financial factars aftecting
the performance of the Company, has been continued through periodic Exccutive leadership forums (both led by Global and Local members of the
Management Teams) in which employees have also been encouraged to present their suggestions and views on the Company's performance.

Information is regularly shared with all employecs through all internal communication channels,

The business runs a hackathon event annually to allow employees from across the business to pul forward new ideas for the business and then
develop them to functioning software by the end of the event.

All employecs are incentivised by a profit share in the event of Tress Ltd meeting its profit ohjectives for each financial year.

Monthly “One Iress” awards are granted 10 employees nominaled by their peers for making a significant contribution to the business.

Business refutivnship with customers

The Group places customers at the heart of everything we do and the Board is commtted to considering the customer impact of every decision

made.

In April 2019 the Iress Community was established. This is an online community for users of Iress software. It provides customers and users with
access to help and best practice documentation as well as access to our experts and regular updates about our software and its releases

Businesy refationship with suppliers
The Group is committed to treating all our supplicrs fairly.

We endeavour 1o pay all suppliers in Jine with their payment rerms and, where this is not possible, we take steps to minimise the impact on the
supplier.
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Strategic Report(continued)

Impact on community and envirenment

Since ils launch, the Iress Foundation has amplified the community support and charity activities our people were already championing. This year,
the Iress Foundation has gone one step further and implemented a Workplace Giving Programme called the Iress Feundation Giving Platform. The
platform provides our people with a central information source of Foundation initiatives and an easy way 1o get involved in Foundation activities
and donate to Foundation causes. Its comprehensive analytics and reporting provides us with a deeper understanding of how our people get involved
and which causes matter 10 them most.

The Group has a long standing tradition of investing in local communities including programmes to support local charties and their tmitiatives.

Through the Iress Matching Initiatives, we support people a1 Iress who want to focus beyond the cumrent Iress Opportunity Initiatives, on causes
that are close to their hearts.

We give eligible members of our team three days of [ress Foundation Leave each year to help them give back to Iress Foundation supported
chantable organisations.

More information on this can be found in the Parent Company Statutory Accounts.

Business conduct
The Group has policies regarding conduct, ethics and responsibilities which must be adhered to by all employees.

Acting fairly between members
The Group does not have any extemal shareholders. However, it is required to align with the activities of Iress Ltd, the ultimate parent. and their
shareholder matiers such as strategic direction and performance.

Impact of Brexit on the Group

There has been no significant impact of Brexit noted on the Group's performance to date. Given the predommantly domestic focus of UK clients,
the Group does not expect a significant direct Brexit impact. The Group is exposed to indirect economic impacts which are harder to predict and
are being closely monitored.

Impact of COVID-19 on the Group

There have been some delays in client implementations during 2020 but given the high proportion of recurring revenue and the cash generative
nature of the business the Group does not expect a significant direct impact. The Group 1s exposed to indirect economic impacts that are harder to
predict and are being closely monitored.

Disabled employ ees

The Company gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s particular aptitudes and abilities
are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job. Opportunities arc available to disabled employces for training, carcer
development and promotion.

Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Company’s policy to provide continuing employment wherever practicable in the same or an
altemnative position and to provide appropniate training to achieve this aim.

Employee inyolvement

The Company opcrates a framework for employee information and consultation which complies with the requirements of the Information and
Consultation of Employees Regulations 2005, During the year, the policy of providing employees with information, including information relating
(o the economic and financial factors affecting the performance of the Company, has been continued through periodic Executive leadership forums
in which employecs have also been encouraged to present their suggestions and views on the Company’s performance

Regular meetings are held between local management and employees to allow a free flow of information and ideas. Employees participate directly
in the success of the business through the Iress Group’s profit-share, executive bonus and share option schemes.

Approved by the Directors and signed on behalf of the Board by:

A Morgan
Director
Warwick

I December 2020
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Iress UK Holdings Limited and its subsidianes (“The Group” or “Iress” or “the Company”) submit the audited annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors

The names of the Directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year are:

* S Badley {resigned as a director 3 April 2019)

» P Ferguson (resigned as a director 7 June 2019)
» JHarris

A Walsh

+ R Kelly (appointed as a director 7 June 2019)

* A Morgan (appointed as a director 7 June 2019)
+ ] McNeill {appointed as a director 7 June 2019}

Campany sceretary
+  RKelly
Directors’ indemniticy

The Iress Group made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions during the year and they remain in force at the date of this report. The third-
party indemnity provisions were for the benefit of the Directors of the Group. its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and its ultimate holding company.

Principal activities

Tress UK Holdings Limited and its consclidated subsidiaries (“The Group™ of “Iress” or “the Company”) provide business-critical software solutions
to banks, wealth managers, financial planners, life insurance companies, brokers and other financial services companies.

No change in principal activities occurred during the current year.

Review of operations

The profit for the Group for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to £9.31 1 milhion (2018: £12.137 million).
Brividends

No dividend was declared and paid to Iress Intcrnational Holdings Proprietary Limited during the year (2018: £Nil). On 28 Apnit 2020, an in specic
dividend of £13.960m was declared and paid.

Ey ents subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date

As al 31 December 2019 China had alerted the World Health Organisation (WHO) of several cases of an unusual form of pneumonia in Wuhan.
[fowever, substantive information about what has now been identified as COVID-19 only came to light in early 2020. The Group does not expect
a significant impact on recurring revenue but has experienced delays in some project revenue. The group is expected to remain cash generative. To
date there has been no negative impacts on recoverability of debtors or contract assets. The Group is exposed to indirect economic impacts that are
harder to predict and are being closely monitored.

As noted in Note 2.1, a cash flow projection has been used to test for impairment of goodwill in each CGU. The directors have assessed that any
delays in revenue as a result of COVID-19 are recevered in future periods. This is based on the impact of COVID-19 observed during the 2020
year o date which has been largely limited to existing and new implementation delays. Given the uncertainty of COVID-19, if it does have a longer
term material impact on revenue, reducing growth within a CGU. then it will result in reduced headroom or impairment of the goodwill allocated
to that CGU.

On 10 March 2020, Iress completed the acquisition of 100%; of the share capital of O&M Systems Ltd {O&M), who provide a system for pension
and investment planning for £3.356m.
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Directors® Report (continued)

Events subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date (continued)

During February 2020 and June 2020, the Group entered into 10 year lease agreements for two new properties and a 10 year extension to an existing
lease. All leases have a 5 year break clause. There is no significant financial impact on the group as the new leases replaced existing property leases
with similar terms.

On 28 Aprd 2020, an in specie dividend of £13.960m was declared and paid.

These subsequent events are all non-adjusting events.

Changes in state of affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group.

Future developments

Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page 4.

Political eontributions

The Company did not make any political contributions during the year (2018; £Nil),

Disabled cmploy ees

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 6.

Employee involvement

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 6,

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including cash flow risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The use of (inancial
derivatives is governed by the parent Company s policies approved by the Board of Directors, that provide written principles on the use of financial

derivatives to manage these risks. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for specuiative purposes,

Cash flow risk

The Company’s activities can expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company uses
CTOSS currency swap contracts to hedge these exposures. Interest bearing assets and liabilities are held at both fixed and floating rates in accordance
with the policies of Iress Limited, the ultimate holding company.

Credit rivk
The Company’s principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents. trade and other receivables, and investments The Company’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position are net of a credit risk allowance.

An allowance for impairment is tnade where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is ¢vidence of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash flows.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited as management fotlows a policy of holding funds with counterparties
that are banks with high credit-ralings assigned by intemnational credit-rating agencies.

The Company has ne significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers. The
Company manages and monitors its credit risk in relation to trade receivables using debtors ageing reports that are reviewed on a menthly basis.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Ligquidity risk

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operatiens and future developments, the Company uses 2
mixture of long-term and short-term debt that is provided by the ultimate parent company and its affiliates. Refer to Notes 2.4 and 2.5 for further
details regarding the Company’s liquidity risks.

Research and development

We continue to invest in our software products which are summarised below:

TRADING AND MARKET DATA FINANCIAL ADVICE MORTGAGES, LIFE AND PENSIONS

Solutions

Ry

Ly

e g e

Clicnts

Research and development expenses incurred during the year were £21.777 million (2018: £21.609 million} and £0.194million was capitalised
(2018: nil).

Going concern

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is in a net current asset position of £23.401 million (2018: £10.159 million) The Group’s total current assets
after net related pany trade payables exceeded its total current liabilities after net related party trade payables by £7.454 million (2018: £3.577
million). The year end cash position of £2.399 million is a result of £13.350 million of excess funds being remitted o Iress Limited during the year.

The Directors of Iress UK Holdings Limited maintain a cash flow forecast for 12 months beyond the date of authorising these financial statements.
This cash flow forecast has been sensitised to allow for revenue delays as a result of the impact of COVID-19 and this indicates that no reasonably
plausible downside scenarios result in the Group having insufficient cash reserves 1o meets its obligations as they fall due for a period of at least 12
months from the date of signing these financial statements.

In the remote event that funding is required, the Directors of Iress Limited have provided a letter of support to Iress UK Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries which states that Tress Limited:

a) continues to support and provide additional finance 10 the Group for at least 12 months from the signing date of the financial statements; and
b) will not demand payment of loans unti] such time as the subsidiary 15 able to repay such amounts without detriment to its operation as a going
concern.

Following reasonable ¢nquiries, the Directors of Iress UK Holdings Limited have an expectation that Iress Ltd has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and will be able to provide funding in the remote circumstances that it is required by
the Group. As part of their comprehensive assessment of whether Iress Ltd is a going concern, the Directors have reviewed the Iress Lid cash flow
and solvency forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date of authorising the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Auditer's independence declaration

Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

e 50 far as cach Director is aware, there is ne relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditor is unaware; and

e each Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.
Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue as the Group's auditor and a resolution te re-appoint them will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting in accordance with sections 485-488 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Directors and signed on behalf of the Board by:

A Morgan
Darector
Warwick

1 December 2020
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accerdance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requircs the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors are required to prepare the

group financia] statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and Anicle 4

of the IAS Regulation and have alse chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard

101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial siatemenis unless they are satisfied that they

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements. the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e  makc judgments and accounting estimates that are rcasonable and prudent;

e  state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial stalements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

e  properly select and apply accounting policies;

®  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

& provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

e make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companics Act 2006,

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other

jurisdictions.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

o the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give 2 true and fair view of the asscts,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole:

L] the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation 1aken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face;
and

o  the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole. are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the company’s position and performance. business model and strategy

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 1 December 2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

A Morgan
Director
Warwick

1 December 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Iress UK Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opimion:
e the financial statements of lress UK Holdings Limited (the “parent company ') and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and fair view
of the state of the group’s and of the parent company 's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the group’s profit for the ycar then ended;
e the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as
adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);
o  the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disciosure Framework™; and
. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the consolidated siatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income;
the consolidated statement of financial position;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity;
the consolidated statement of cash flows;
company statement of financial position;
company statement of changes in equity; and
#  therelated notes 1.1 40 5.5
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UUK) (IS As (UK)) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under
those standards are furiher described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We arc independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, mcluding the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide
a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
®  thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate, oy
. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Iress UK Holdings Limited
(continued)

Other information

The direciors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent malterial misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is
2 malerial misstatement in the financial statements or 4 material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repert that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters,

Respeonsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statemen, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the group or the parent comipany or 16 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantec that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 1n the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilites for the audu of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at
www fre erg uk auditorsresponsibilives This deseription forms part of our auditor’s report

Report on ether legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
®  the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and
®  the strategic report and the directors” report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified any material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors” report
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Iress UK Holdings Limited
(continued}

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
e  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or
. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
e we have not received zll the information and explanatiens we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters,

Use of our report

This report ts made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s repon
and for no other purpose. To the fuilest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

'7_'5_(—,“")( o Yyl s

Taspal Flora FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London

United Kingdom

1 December 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

iress

2019 2018
Notes £000 000
Revenue from contracts with customers 11 86,182 82,536
Customer data fees (4,616) {4,413}
Communication and other technology expenses (5,409) (5,384)
Employee benefit expenses 1.2 {52,736) (49,777
Other Income 16 2,739 1,328
Profit before depreciation, amortisation, interest and income tax expense 26,160 24,290
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1.7 (6,347) (5,506)
Profit before interest and income tax expense 19,813 18,784
Interest revenue 579 372
Financing costs (7,167 (5,314)
Net interest and financing costs 31 (6,588) {4,942)
Profit before income tax expense 13,225 13,842
Income tax expense 4.1 (3,914} (1,705)
Net profit after income tax expense 9,311 12,137
Other comprehensive result for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the holding company 9311 12,137

The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Iress Ul HOL DINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019



Consolidated Statement of Financial Paosition
As at 31 December 2019
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2014 2018

Notes £'000 L0
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.8(a) 2,399 2 005
Receivables and other assets 2.4 15,714 12,009
Receivables with related parties 24 32,983 21,205
Current taxation receivables 37 -
Total current assets 51,133 35,219
Non-current assets
Intangible assels 2.1 224,588 227,844
Property, plant and equipment 22 1,825 2,342
Right-of-use assets 2.3(b} 4,347 -
Deferred tax assets 4.1 2,165 2,432
Derivative assets 3.1 - 434
Total non-current assets 232,925 233,052
Total assets 284,058 268,271
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Pavables and other liabilities!” 25 7.508 8,682
Lease liabilities 2.3(c) 1,037 -
Payables with related parties 25 17,036 14,623
Current tax payables 2,151 1,755
Total current liabilities 27,732 25,060
Non-current lizhilities
Lcase liabilities 2.3(c) 3,982 -
Dcbt facilitics 3.1 93,453 93,453
Derivative habilities 3t 929 -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.1 1,160 1,658
Total non-current liabilities 99,524 95,111
Total liabilities 127,256 120,171
Net assets 156,802 148,100
EQUITY
Issued capital 32 50,276 50,276
Retained earnings 106,526 97,824
Total equity 156,802 148,100
(s £0.3 millon ot annoal leave accruals were reclassified trom current provisions o current payables and other liabilities in 2U138

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements of Iress UK Holdings Limited (registered number 08612198) on pages 16 to 58 were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 1 December 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

A Morgan
Director
Warwick

1 December 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the yvear ended 31 December 2019

Issued Retnined Total

capital earnings equiry

Notes £000 £1000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2018 50,276 85,687 135,963
Net profit afier income tax expense . 12,137 12,137
Total comprehensive income for the year - 12,137 12,137
Balance at 31 December 2018 50,276 97,824 148,100
Issued Retained Total

capital carnings equity

Notes £'000 £000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2019 50,276 97,824 148,100
Impact of change in accounting policy™" - (609) {609)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2019 50,276 97,215 147,491
Net profit aflier income tax expense - 9311 9311
Total comprehensive income for the year - 9311 9311
Balance at 31 December 2019 50,276 106,526 156,802

o Impact of adopting [FRS 16's modified retrospective approach under which the cumulative effect of initial application s recognised in retained earnings at |

January 2G19. Refer to note 4.3 {a)(1i).

The Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in comjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 200 ¥
Notes £'000 L£000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 1.8(b) 11,717 8,493
Interest received 579 372
Interest paid (5,635) (5,607}
Income taxes paid (3,503 (1,512)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,158 1,746

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for intangible assets 21 {194} (102)
Payments for plant and equipment 22 (1,081) (1,295)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 13 8
Payment of deferred consideration 2.6 - {1,100)
Net cash utilised by investing activities (1,262) (2.489)

Cash flows from financing activities
Paymicnt of lcase hability (1,389) -
Payment of lease interest (113) -
Net cash utilised by financing activities (1,502) -
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 394 (743)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,005 2,748
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear 1.8(a) 2,399 2,008

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in confunction with the accompanving notes
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

SECTION 1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

1.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

Tress designs, develops and delivers technology solutions for the financial services industry in Australia, New Zealand. the United Kingdom, South
Aftica, Canada and Asia,
From these activities, Iress generates the following streams of revenue:
Software licence revenue
Implementation and consuiting revenue
Royalties revenue from provision of financial market information
Other ancillary fees such as hosting and suppott service fees

Each of the above services delivered to customers are considered separate performance obligations, even though for practical expedience they may
be governed by a single legal contract with the customer,

Revenue recognition for each of the above revenue streams are as follows

Revenue stream

Performance
obligs

Timing of recognition

Software licence
revenug

Access to software,

Software license revenue is recognised over time as the customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefit
of accessing the software.

Revenue is calculated based on the number of licences uscd and rate per hicensc. or as a negotiated package for large
custorners. Changes in these factors over time may impact the revenue recognised over the life of the contract.

Software license revenue is recogmised as the amount 16 which the Group has a right 1o invoice.

Customers are typically invoiced monthly and consideration is payable when invoiced, which comresponds directly
with the performance completed 1o dale in respect of this stream.

Implementation
amnd consulling
revenue

As defined in the
contract

Revenue is recognised over time as services are delivered.
Revenue fiom providing services 1s recogmised mn the accounting penod in which the services are rendered.
Revenue is calculated based on 1ime and materials.

For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting
period.

Recognition 1s determined based on the actual labour hours spent as a proportion of total expected hours. Tius
requires judgement of the forecast expected hours and changes in implementation timing.

If contracts mciude the installation of hardware, revenue for the hardware is recogmised at u point in fime when the
hardware is delivered. the legal title has passed. and the customer has accepted the hardware.

Rovyaltics revenuce

Provision of financial
market information.

Royalties revenue is recognised over time as the customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefit of
accessing the information.

Royalies revenue 15 recogmsed i the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice,
Customers are typically invoiced menthly and consideration is payable when invoiced, which corresponds directly
with the performance completed to date in respect of this stream.

Other ancillary fees

Frovision of hosting
services, clond
services, support and

maintenance services,

Owver time, depending on circumstances.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as implementation services and software licences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.1 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Because the implementation services do not include material software customisation that are specific to the clicnt and could be performed by
another party, the implementation service and software licences are accounted for as separate performance obligations. In these cases, the transaction
prices are allocated 1o each performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost-plus margin.

In fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed amount based on an agreed payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Group exceed
the payment. a contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised

If the contract includes an hourly fee, revenue is recognised at the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice (i.e. based on hours actually
incurred in providing the service to the client). Custoeners arc invoiced monthly and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Critical accounting judgements with respect to revenue:

The recognition and measurement of revenue requires the application of judgement in assessing the extent to which client implementations are
complete. This will include judgements relating to forecasted expected days, changes in implementation timing and identification of inplementation
revenue from contracts with multiple deliverables.

{a) Revenue by sepment is summansed below
Revenue stream Revenue LK Mortgages Total

recognition (Wealth, Trading
& Sourcing)

£000 £000 £'000
For the yvear ending 31 December 2018
Software licence revenue Over time 56,613 2514 59,127
Implementation and consulting revenue Over time 1,064 12,390 13,454
Royalties revenue Over time 1,789 - 1,789
Other ancillary fees Over time 7,232 934 8,166
Total revenue 66,698 15,838 82,536
For the year ending 31 December 2019
Software licence revenue OQwver time 58,809 4,015 62,824
Implementation and consulting revenue Over time 1,304 10,656 11,960
Royalties revenue Over time 1,835 - 1,835
Other ancillary fees Over time 8,561 1,002 9.563
Total revenue 70,509 15,673 86,182

by Recenvables, contract assets and contract habilities from contracts with customers by segment s summarised below.
UK Mortgages Total
(Wealth, Trading
& Sourcing)
£'000 £000 £1000

For the year ending 31 December 2018

Trade receivables 6,593 1,145 7.738
Contract assets 1,668 1,368 3,036
Contract liabilities (1,676) (527) {2,203)

For the year ending 31 December 2019

Trade receivables 6,694 297 6,991
Contract assets 4,404 2,769 7,173
Contract liabilitics {1,425) (77 (1,502)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.1 Revenue from contracts with custemers {continued}

(¢) Revenue recogmised i relation (o contract assets and habitities

The following table shows the revenue recognised in the current reporting period in relation to the contact assets and contract liabilities:

Contract Assets Contract Liabilits
2819 2018 2019 2AHK
£004 1000 £1000 LO00
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,036 5,010 (2,203) (2,094)
Transfer from contract assets to receivables (3,036) (5,010) - -
Revenue raised for work performed but not yet billed 7,173 3036 - -
Decrease due to revenue recognised from performances obligations
satisfied - - 2,203 2,094
Increase due to cash received. excluding anmount recognised during the
year - - (1,502) (2.203)
Balance at the end of the year 7,173 3,036 (1,502) {2,203)

tdy Transaction price allocated 1o the remaming pertormance obhgations
The following table includes the revenue on existing contracts expected to be recognised in the future which relates to performance obligations that
are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) at the reporling date:

UK Mortgages Totai
Y ear in w hich
franmsaction Resenue l“_:alth.
price i Revenue stream L Trading &
expected 1o be recoghition Sourcing)
realised
£'004 £'000 £'000
Sottware licence revenue Over lime 309 2,971 3,280
2020
Tmplementation and consulting revenue Qwer time ] 4119 4,127
Total revenuc 317 7,090 7.407
2021 Software licence revenue Over time 350 281 631
2022 Software licence revenue Qver time 357 - 3157
2023 Softwarc licence revenue Over time 364 - 364
2024 Software licence revenue Over lime 105 - 105
Software licence revenue Crver time 1,485 3,252 4,737
Total
Implementation and consulting revenue Over time -1 4,119 4,127
Total revenue 1,493 7,371 8,864

The Group applies the practical expedient in the revenuc standard and docs not disciose information about the remaining performancc obligation
on contracts that have an original cxpected duration of onc year or less or where the Group has the right to consideration from a customer in an
amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date

The table above, therefore, does not include revenue expected to be recognised in future years on software licence, royalties and other ongoing
contracts where the Group will recognise revenue in the amount to which the entity has a right to invoice.

1.2 Employee benefit expenses

Short-term employee benefits, mainly comprising of base salary and annual leave costs, are expensed as the employce renders services.

Post-employment benefits which comprise Iress’ contribution to defined contribution retirement plans are expensed 25 the service is received from
the employee.

Termination benefits are amounts paid to employees when their employment 1s lerminated. These are expensed when Iress can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.2 Employee benefit expenses (continued)

iress

2019 218
Notes £'000 11000
Short term and othet employee benefits (42,129) (41,587)
Social scourity costs (4,366) (4,208
Post employment benefits (3,284) (2,938)
Termination benefits (164) (6}
Share-based payment expense 1.5(c) {2,793) (1,046)
(52,736) 49,777
1.3 Director and KMP remuneration disclosures
The Key Management Persons (KMP} and directors of the Company and the Group are detailed below:
Pard by Uilimate i Paid by
I".arunl & nn}pem}‘ or
Ciroup
S Badley (Director - resigned 3 April 2019) Y
P Ferguson (Director - resigned 7 June 2019) N
J Harris (Director) v
R Kelly {Director - appointed 7 June 2019} ¥
J McNeill (Director - appointed 7 June 2019} ¥
A Morgan (Director - appointed 7 June 2019) R
A Walsh (Director) v
Phil Quin-Conroy (KMP - joined 17 June 2019) y

In 2018, the KMP remuneration disclosures included 4 directors paid by the Group and | senior manager.

On 7 June 2019, the senior manager considered to be KMP in 2018 and during 2019 was appointed as a dirccior.

On 17 June 2019, a senior manager joined the Group and has been considered to be a KMP since.

The resultant year end KMPs are the directors (4 of whom are remunerated by the Group) and 1 senior manager.
The following table provides details of remuneration paid to KMPs by the Company or Group, being these 5 individuals (2018: 2 individuals). This
differs from the directors remuneration due to it including the full year remuneration of the KMP who became a director in the year and the

remuncration of the senior manager who joined during the year.

219 RUTE
£'004 £000
Short term employee benefits (629) (464)
Post-employment benefits") 40 (33)
Other employee benefitst? (382) (60)
(1,051) (55T

The remuneration paid to the 4 directors by the Company or Group, while directors of the Company, is as follows:
2019 2018
£7000 £1000
Short term employee benefits (436) {336}
Post-employment benefits™ (26) (27)
Other employee benefits'™® (208) (60)
[CHL)] {423)

M This comprises of contributions to defined contribution plans in relation 1o 4 direcrors and 1 KMP (2018: 1 Director and 1 KMP of the Group)
= This compwises value of shares granted during the year, recharged from the ultimate parent entity, Iress Limited.

In 2019, 3 directors exercised share options (2018: 2 directors) and 4 directors acerued share options (2018: 2 directors). 4 directors are members

of defined contribution pension schemes (2018: 1 director).

Aggregate remuneration of the highest paid director was £0.362 million (2018: £0.423 million).
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Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.4 Number of employees

iress

2019 2018
Average number of employees 683 649
Account Management and Sales 238 212
Product and Development 295 301
Administration 150 136
Total 683 649

The number above 15 based on the monthly average number of Full Time Employees (“FTEs™) employed by subsidianes withm the UK Group.
There were no employees in Iress UK Holdings Limtted other than the 5 Directors (2018: 4 Directors).

1.5 Share-based payments

Share based payments are made from the ultimate parent Iress Ltd. The grant date fair value of equity setiled share-based payment awards granted
to cmployees is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the awards. The amoun! recogniscd
as an expense is adjusted 1o reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance
conditions at the vesting date.

(a)

Details of share plans

To assist in the attraction, retention and motivation of employees, Iress Ltd operates the following share-based payment plans:

Execunive Equity
Rights - From 2019

Kev terms
Eligible participants

receive cquity rights al no

COst.

Performance
ndition

Individual
performance criteria

Pertormance

Restriction penod

2 year vesting
followed by 2 ycar
holding lock

Dividends

recened belore

westing
No but dividend
equivalent “top-
up” on vesting

I panticipant lkeaves belore
end ot performance period

Generally forfeited (Board
discretion may apply)

Executive Transition
Equity Rights - In
2019

Eiigibie participants

receive equity rights at no

cost.

Individual
performance criteria

2 year vesting
followed by 2 year
holding lock

No but dividend
equivalent “top-
up” on vesting

Pro-rata portion of equity
generally held subject to
original terms {Board
discretion may apply)

invited to acquire [ress

Eligible participants Absolute toal 3 years No
Execcutive PR Plan - receive performance shateholder return Generally forteited (Board
From 2019 rights at no cost {ATSR) against discretion may apply)
hurdles
Exccutive PR Plan- | D) 8ible participants Total shareholder 3 years No Generally forfeited (Board
. recetve performance retumn (TSR) against . R
Priorto 2019 . discretion may apply)
rights at no cosl. pecr group
Employee Deferred Eligible participants 3 years (Vesting in Yes
Share Plan - From receive deferred shares at equal pottigns
2019 no cost. annually) ]
Employee Deferred Eligiblc participants 3 years Yes
Share Plan - Prior 1o receive deferred shares al - .
2019 no cost. Individual beneml]y forfeited
— — - — {Board discretion may
Employee Deferred Eligible participants petformance criteria 3 years {Vesting in Yes apply)
Share Rights Plan - receive deferred rights a1 equal portions PPy
From 2619 no cost. annually)
Employee Deferred Lligible participants 3 years Ne
Share Rights Plan - receive deferred rights at
Prior to 2019 no cost.
Eligible participants are Nil 3 years Yes Generally retained

shares. Iress matches this
participation to a set value
or gifts a set value of
shares ot rights at no cost.

Onelress Equity Plan

Further information on the Iress share plan can be read in the Annual Report of Iress Limited as at 31 December 2019. Copies of the Iress Limited
financial statements are available from the Iress Limited website: www ireas o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continucd)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.5 Share-based payments (continued)

(b) Grant date fair value
The grant date fair value of the Executive LTI Plans and the Employee Deferred Share Rights Plan are independently determined using a Monte

Carlo simulation option pricing model using standard option pricing inputs such as the underlying share price, exercise price, expected dividends,
expected risk free rates and expected share price volatility.

Key inputs are summarised below:

B -
Key inputs in determining grant date fair value L)El?lm];tlla‘;le Employce Deferred Sharc Rights Plan
Model used Monte Carlo Monte Carlo

Risk free rate 16-3% 16-3%

Share price volatility 225-275% 225-27.5%

Dividend yield 3.25% -4.25% 3.25% -425%

As the vesting conditions of the Employee Deferred Share Plan grants are not linked to company performance and panticipants receive dividends
during the vesting period. the grant date fair value approximates the share price at the date of grant.

(¢) Details of shares or rights en issue during the year and the amount expensed during the year is shown below:

NUMBER OF SHARES AT GRANT DATE
—— — 2019
Type Grant date Vesting AL1 Jan Granted Forfeited Vested A3 Dec \::::- \'::I.:: 1000
date 2019 2019 s <

Executive PR Plans
2016 Grant 05/05/16  05/05/19 44,640 - (1,482) {43,158) - 11.87 8.50 (17)
2017 Grant 11/05/17 11/05720 48,391 - (11,297} - 37,094 12.24 713 (24)
2018 Grant 10/05/18 10/05/21 78,168 - {24,449) - 53,719 10.86 5.79 (40}
2019 Grant 09/05/1%  09/05/22 - 40,560 - - 44,560 14.22 1273 (60}
2019 Grant - ER 28/02/19 26/02/21 - 127,048 - - 127,048 14.22 12.00 (349)
2019 Grant 28/02/19 28/02/22 - 86,877 - - R6 877 14.22 5.54 {78)

171,199 254,485 (37,228) (43,158) 345,298 (568)
Employee Deferred Share Plan
2016 Grant 05/05/t6 05/05/19 134,591 - 16,234)  (128357) - 11.87 11.87 (935)
2017 Grant 11/05/17 11/05/20 200,991 - (8.609) (775) 191.607 12.24 12.39 (401)
2018 Gramt 10/05/18 10405/21 280,429 - {13,042) (624) 266,763 14 86 10.86 {511)
2019 Grant - EAG 28/02/19  28/02/22 - 336,007 (12,488) - 323,519 1422 1200 (1,081)

616,011 336,007 (40,373) (129,756) 781,889 (2,088)
Employce Deferred Share Rights Plan
2014 Grant - Special 01/01/14 3112/18 57.244 - (5,723) (51,521) - 827 773 -
2016 Grant 05/05/16  05/05/1% 47318 - - (47318) - 11.87 10.25 (30)
2017 Grant 11/405/17 11/05/2¢ 51,944 - (12,065) - 39,879 12.24 10.86 39
2018 Grant 10/05/18 10/05/21 79,696 - (24,412) - 55274 10 86 9.58 (68)

236,202 - (42,210} {98,839) 95,153 137
Total 1,023,412 590,492 (119.811) (271,753) 1,222,340 (2,793)

The weighted average remaining costractual life of the above grants is 1.4 years (2018: 1.6 years)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.6 Other income/(expenses)

{ay Included in other operating and other non-operating (eapenses} income are the following stems:

iress

2919 201K
Notes £000 £1000
Other operating (expenses)income

Income from property subleasing 329 -
Fees to auditor 1.6(b} (155) (105)
Irrecoverable trade debtors written off (280) -
Credit loss allowances released/(recognised) to the profit and loss 208 (431)
Consultancy cxpenditures (361) (295)
Rental expense relating to operating leases - (1.029)
Legal fees 91 (127}
Office costs 1,791) (1,886}
Marketing {520) (399
Other expenses including administration cxpenses (721) {1.969)
Total net other operating expenses (3,382) (6,241)

Other non-operating (expenses)/income'"
Software license fees? 5,626 7,504
(Loss)/gain on disposal of plant and equipment [} 46
Unrealised Yosses on foreign currency balances 497 249
Business acquisition and integration (expense)/income {11) 3
Other income/{expense) 10 (233)
Total net other non-operating income 6121 7,569
Net other income 2,739 1,328

‘' Non operating expenses are expenses that are unrclated 1o Iress” core operations

'#'Relates to :mcr-cnm%any fee received [l lress Limited representing contribntion tfowards the ongoing development of key lress group software and the continued

development of globai Iress platferms products and solutions,

(b} bros 1o audior. Delottte T1 P for services rendered are as tollows

2019 201K
£'000 £'000
Auditor of the parent entity
Audit of the financial report (117) (105)
Other non-audit services™ (38) -
Total fees to anditor (155) (105)

o Other services comprisc assurance and other compliance reviews.

Audst fees represent fees paid or payable 1o Deloiie LLP and their associates for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts. There

were £38k fees paid for non-audil services during the year (2018: £Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) Iress

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.7 Depreciation and amortisation

Computer and other plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life of between 3 to 10 years.

2019 2018
Notes £000 £'000
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amortisation 21 (3,450) (4,172)
Depreciation - computer equipment {1,271) (L177)
Depreciation - other plant and equipment (313) (157
Depreciation - right-of-use assets (1,313) -
(6,34T) (5,506)
1.8 Notes to the statement of cash flows
{a) Cash and cash cquivalents comprise ol
Credt 2019 2018
Rating £'000 000
Cash at bank in British Pounds Sterling Al 2,392 1,993
Cash at bank in Euros AA3 6 11
Cash at bank in United States Dollars AA3 | !
Total cash and cash equivalent 2,399 2,005
{b} Revoncilnion of profit attributable to members of the parent entity Lo net cash fows frum operating activities:
20109 2018
£000 £
Net profit after income tax expense 9,311 12,137
Adjustments for non-cash items and nen-operating cashflow items:
Depreciation and amortisation 6,347 5,506
Net credit loss allowances reversed on trade receivables {208} -
Impairment of intra-group asset 72 -
(Gains)/losses on fair value of financial instruments (55) 36
Foreign exchange gains {152) -
Losscs on sale of plant and equipment i -
Interest revenue (579) (372)
Financing costs 7,167 5314
Taxation 3914 1,705
Change in working capital and tax balances, net of effects from acquisition of
controlled entities:
Increase in receivables and other asscts (15,490) (15,037)
Increase in payables and other liabilities 1,389 3,204
Cash generated from operating activities 11,717 8,493
¢y £0.3 millon ot annuad leave accruals were reclassibed from current provisions to current payables and other fiabiitties.
(v) Reconcihation of liabilitics ansing from financing activities,
Initial Interest
2018 recognition  Cash flon expense 2019
L1000 £000 £000 £000 £10040
Lease Liability - 6,705 1,389 113 5,019
Total Liabilities from financing activities - 6,705 1,389 113 5,019
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iress

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.9 Transactions with related parties

Tress Limited ("IRE"} is the ultimate holding company of the Group, who owns 100% (2018: 100%) ordinary shares in the parent company Iress
International Holdings Proprietary Limited, who in tum owns 100% (2018: 100%) ordinary shares in Iress UK Haoldings Limited. Iress Limited is
a major supplier of equity market data to the Group.

All outstanding balances with related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis, on commercial terms available in the market.

Details of borrowings from related parties and their associated terms are provided n Note 3.1,

Other receivables from/payables to related parties are on detmand, unsecured and settled in cash.

No expensc has been recognised in the current yeat or prior year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties.

The Directors of Iress Lintited have provided a letter of support to Iress UK Holdings Limited and jts subsidiaries which states that Iress Limited:
a) continues to support and provide additional finance to the Group for at least 12 months from the signing date of the financial statements; and

b) will not demand payment of loans until such time as the subsidiary is able 1o repay such amounts without detriment to its operation as a going
CONCem.

The fair value of the related party receivables and payabie approximates its camrying value due to its short-term nature.

The net fees charged by fellow Jress Group entities amount to £1.284 million (2018: £0.544 million), and the vwstanding balance at the end of the
year is £15.564 million receivable (2018 £6.582 million receivable).

Related party transactions affecting profit or loss are as follows:

2019 2018
£1000 000

Fees received from related undertakings:
Interest income 578 359
Group Service Fees 5,626 11,639
6,204 11,998
2019 2018
£'800 LM

Fees charged by related undertakings:

Market data (762) (743)
Employee benefit recharges (44) (906)
Interest expenses '/ (3,607} {5,607}
Other recharges (1,075) (5,286)
{7,488) (12,542)
Net fees charged by related undertakings (1,284) {544)

Settied in ¢ash via monthly cash pavments to frevs Limited
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iress

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

SECTION 2. ASSETS AND WORKING CAPITAL

2.1 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Intangible assets for the Group comprise of goodwill arising from business combinations, customer relationships, computer software and other
intangibles (mainty acquired databases and brands). Intangible assets with finite lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill recognised arose from business combinations where the fair value of the consideration paid exceeded the fair value of the assets
acquired. Goodwill is considered 1o have an indefinite life and is not amortised as it represents the synergistic benefits of bringing the businesses
together.

Customer relationships, some computer sofiware and other intangibles were acquired as part of business combinations. These intangible assets
are initially recognised at their fair valuc at the acquisition date. Some of the computer software was separately acquired, and initially recognised
at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets other than goodwill are amortised over the expected usefu! lives noted below.

Internally generated assets will be recognised where the cost of actual development can be reliably measured and clearly distinguished from
research and ongoing operating and maintenance activities. Given software development occurs contemporaneously with the research phase
and operating and maintenance activities, the separation of the cost of development can be imprecise and difficult to reliably measure.
Accordingly, where the expenditure related to the development activity cannot be reliably measured, the Group expenses the amounts in the
period they are incurred.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of cach annual reporting period.
Amortisation is recognised on a siraight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the amortisation calculation;

¢ Goodwill infinite

¢ Customer relationships 1-19 years
e  Computer software 3-15 years
e Other intangible assets 1-10 years

The ameortisation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenses incurred during the year were £21.777 million (2018: £21.609 million). Refer to the Directors” Report on
page 8 for further details.

(a) The carrving vabue of imntangibles i shown below .

Gondwill (‘}mttm-mr Computer ) ()'ther Total
relationships suftware intangibles
£000 £'000 £7000 £000 £'000
At 31 Idecember 2018
Cost 216,918 20,678 21,249 298 259143
Accumulated amortisation - (12.427) (18.,780) {92) (31,299)
Carrying value 216,918 8,251 2,469 206 227844
Movement for the vear
Balance at 1 January 2018 216,918 10,548 4,212 236 231,914
Internal development costs - - 102 - 102
Amortisation - (2,297) (1,845) 30 (4.172)
Balance at 31 December 2018 216,918 8,251 2,469 206 227,844
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iress

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continucd}
For the year ended 31 Decetnber 2019

2.1  Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

{a) The carrving vaiue of imangibles 1» shown below (contnued):
Gl e otaare intangivie Total
£000 £000 £ £'000 £'000
At 31 December 2019
Cost 216,918 20,678 20,347 298 258,241
Accumulated amottisation - (14,716) (18,816) {121} {33,653)
Carrying value 216,918 5,962 1,531 177 224,588
Movement for the yvear
Balance at 1 January 2019 216,918 8,251 2,469 206 227,844
Internal development costs - - 194 - 194
Disposal - - (1,096) - (1,096)
Amortisation eliminated on disposal - - 1,096 - 1,096
Amortisation - (2,289) (1,132) 29 (3,450)
Balance at 31 December 2019 216,918 5,962 1,531 77 124,588

Stgrmificunt intangehle usseie

In previous years, the Group acquired Avelo Lending, Proguote and Pulse custormer contracts as part of the business combinations. The camying
amount of the Avelo Lending customer contracts of £0.452 million (2018: £1.397 million} will be fully amortised in 0.5 years (2018: 1.5 years).
The carrying amount of the Puise and Proguote customer contracts of £5.510 million {2018: £6 853 million) will be fully amortised in 6 years
(2018: 7 years).

(b} Imparrment testing tor goodaill

Goodwill is tested for impaitment annually or more frequently whenever indicators of impairment are identified. In testing for impairment. the
carrying amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGU) is compared against the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount has been calculated based on the value in use, using a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) approach. The DCF yses post-
tax cash flow projections that arc based on the most recent four year financial plan approved by the Board and is discounted at an appropriate
after-tax discount rate taking into account the Group's weighted average cost of capital adjusted for any risks specific to the CGU

Terminal growth rates applied in the DCF take into account historic growth trends, future strategy and the long-term outlook of the business.
The allocation of goodwill to each CGU and assumptions applied in calculating the recoverable amounts of the goodwill in testing for
impairment are as follows:

AHocated Goodwill . Pre-Tay ],nng-'l'crm
Discount Rates Growth Rates
Cash generating unit 2019 MK 20109 2018 2019 R{E
£'000 £'000) % A % Y%
UK 171,513 171,513 10.9 11.2 27 27
UK Lending 45,405 45,405 10.9 11.2 27 27

216,918 216,918
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.1 Goodwill and other intangibles (continued)
(b) Impairment testing for goodwill {(continued):

Significant estimates and judgements made:

UK

The cashflow projections uscd in the impairment test includes recurring licence revenue from clients as well as revenue growth assumptions
based on actval performance to date and the most recent four year financial plan approved by the Board. The key assumptions within this
calculation include the four year compound revenuc growth rate within the forecast period, the growth rate of 2.7% used to calculate the
terminal value and the discount rate of 10.9% used to discount the forecast cashflows.

Key judgement

No impairment has been recognised at 31 December 2019. If the UK segment is unable to realise forecast growth targets, it could result in
reduced headroom or impairment of some or all of the goodwill allocated to the UK CGU. Management work closely with Wealth and Trading
clients to mitigate this risk and to ensure implementation contracts are converted into recurring licence revenue.

Key estimates

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been caleulated to be most sensitive to changes in the long tenm growth rate. For the carrying value
of the goodwill to be equal to ils recoverable amount. the long term growth rate would have to become negative. Alternatively, the four year
revenue compound annual growth rates, which will include assumptions around new client wins, will need to decrease by 68% or the discount
rate will need to increase by 71% from 10.9% 1o 18.6% - all of which are not deemed to be reasonably possible changes.

UK Lending

A number of clients have been successfully secured and implementations completed for MSOv2 during 2017 to 2019. The cashflow projections
used in the impairment test inchudes recurring licence revenue from these clients as well as revenue growth assumptions based on actual
performance to date and the most recent four year financial plan approved by the Board. This is based on new ¢lient wins in each year and the
conversion of these new clienls to paying recurring revenue licence fees. No further MSOvI clients remain at the end of 2019, The key
assumptions within this calculation include the four year compound revenue growth rate within the forecast period, the growth rate of 2.7%
used to calculate the terminal value and the discount rate of 10.9% used to discount the forecast cashflows.

Key judgement

No impairment has been recognised at 31 December 2019, If the product is unable to realise forecast growth targets, it could result in reduced
headroom or impairment of some or all of the goodwill allocated to the UK Lending CGUL Managemient work closcly with MSO chients to
mitigate this risk and to ensure implementation contracis are converted into recurring licence revenue,

Key estimates

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been calculated to be most sensitive to changes in the four year compound revenue and long term
growth rate. For the carrying value of the goodwill to be equal to its recoverable amount, the long term growth rate would have to become
negative. Alternatively, the four year revenue compound annual growth rate, which will include assumptions around new client wins, will need
to decrease by the equivalent of 320 basis points or the discount rate will need to increase by 21% from 10.9% to 14.4%.

(e ntangible assets pledged as secuanty

The Group does not have any intangible assets that have been pledged 1o secure borrowings of the Group or any restrictions on title and items
pledged as security for liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methed are reviewed at the end of each annuat reporting period.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

. Computer equipment 2-3 years
o  Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
&  Leaschold improvements 3-5 years
e  Office equipment 5 years

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

Plant and equipment held duning the vear are as follows.

iress

Computer Furniture & Leasehold
equipment fixtures improvements Office equipment Tatal
£'000 £000 £000 £'¢00 £000

At 31 December 2018
Cost 6,085 1.699 35 41 7,880
Accumulated depreciation (4,097) (1,358) (52) 31 (5,538)
Carrying amount 1,988 341 3 10 2,342
Movement for the vear
Balance at 1 January 2018 1,930 454 2 2 2,388
Additions 1,240 40 3 12 1,295
Disposal (5) - V3] - M
Depreciation {1,177) (153) - {4) (1,334)
Balance at 31 December 2018 1,988 341 3 10 2,342

Computer Furniture & Leasehold

equipment fixtures improsements  Office equipment ‘Fatal

£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000

At 31 December 2019
Cost 6,122 1,804 128 19 8,073
Accumulated depreciation {4,520) (1,653} {69) (6) (6,248)
Carrying amount 1,602 151 59 13 1,825
Movement for the year
Balance at 1 January 2019 1,588 341 3 10 2,342
Additions 898 106 70 7 1,081
Disposal {861) - ) (28) (390)
Depreciation eliminated on disposal 848 - 1 27 876
Depreciation {1,271} {296} (i4) (3) (1,584)
Balance at 31 December 2019 1,602 151 59 13 1,825

Property. plant and equipment pledged as securits

The Group does not have any propetty, plant and equipment that have been pledged to secure borrowings of the Group. In addition, the Group

does not have any obligations under finance leases or any resteictions on title and items pledged as security for liabilities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.3 Leases

(a) Iress Group lease portfolio

The Group leases real estate in the ordinary course of its business. The Group’s real estate leases comprise office building leases 1n the United
Kingdom in which the Group operates, The Group previcusly classified these as operating leases under IAS 17 Leases.

Lhe Group's lease porttoho s presented below

Real estate leaves The Group leases office buildings in the UK. The non-cancellable period of these leases range from 1 to 6.5
years

The Group leases an office building on a 10 year lease (the head lease) that commenced on 30 January 2016, The
Sub-leases Group has entered into a sublease that leases part of the office building for 2 years until July 2020. Under 1AS 17
Leases, the Group classified the head lease and the sub-lease as operating leases. Under IFRS 16 Leases the
Group continues 1o classify the sub-lease as an operating lease.

(i} Group as a lessee

Righi-of-tisc assel

The Group recogniscs a right-of-usc asset and a lcase habaiity at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. For tax purposes the Group receives tax deductions in respect of the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities in a manner consistent with the accounting treatment.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted
for cerfain re-measurements of the lease liability.

Lease labilin

The lcase hability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using

the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generatly, the Group

uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The Group’s average incremental borrowing rate used is 1.95%.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lcase liability comprisc the following:

e fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

®  variable icase payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

®  amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

e the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option; and

e payment of penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lcasc liability is presented as a scparate line in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantec or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercisc a purchasc, extension or lermination option.

When the leasc hability is remcasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrving amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero, The Group did not make any such adjusiments
during the penods presented.

Shori-term leases and feases of fow -value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of office and information technology
equipment that have a lease term of 12 months or less or for leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated
with thesc leases as an expense on a siraight-linc basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the vear ended 21 December 2019

2.3. Leases (continued)

(i1} Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, which is generally when 1t sub-leases property on which it has entered a head lease as a lessee, it determines
at the sub-lease inception whether each sub-lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset. I this is the case then the lease is a finance lease. If not, then it is accounted for as an operating lease. As
part of this assessmeni, the (roup considers certain indicators such as whether the leasc is for the major pant of the economic life of the asset.
When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately.

It assesses the lease ¢lassification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described abave, then it classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains a lease and non-lease component, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of ‘non-
operating income”

(b} Carrying value of right-of-use asscts
The Group’s right-of-use assets comprise real estate leases. Righi-of-use assets have finite lives and are carried at cost less accumulated

depreciation.

The carrying value of right-of-use assets is presented below:

Office buildings

2019 201K

£000 1000
Cost 12,459 -
Accumulated depreciation (8,112) -
Carrying value 4,347 -
Opening carrying value -
Change in accounting policy'" 5,660 -
Depreciation (1,313) -
Closing carrying value 4,347 -
Expected useful life (vears) 2 to 10

m Impact of adopting IFRS 16"s modified retrospective approach under which the cumulative eftect of initial application is recognised in retained earnings at 1

January 2019, Refer 1o note 4.3(apii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.3, Leases (continued)

(¢) Lease liabilities
(1) Lease habilities included i the statement of financial position at the end of the p\:rmd:

019 201K

£°000 £'00

Current (1,037 -
Non-current (3,582) -
Total (5,019) -

The Group’s liguidity risk with regard to its lease liabilitics is managed by inclusion of lease lability cashflows in the cashflow forecasts
regularly monitored by the Group in line with the Group’s treasury policy.

(1) Reconciliation of the movement of the Tease habilites:

2019 2018

£'000 £1000

Opening carrying value - B
Change in accounting policy( (6,408} -
Settlement of lease liabilities 1,389 -
Closing carrying value (5,019) -

t Impact of adopting [FRS 16’s modified retrospective approach under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in retained earnings at 1

January 2019 Refer to note 4 _3(a)(ii).

fin) Matarity ana]) sis - contractual undescounted cash Hows

2019 2018
£'000 £
Less than one year 1,166 1,493
More than one year and not more than five years 3,291 3,639
More than five years 840 1,573
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at the end of the period 5,297 6,705

(d) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
The table below shows the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss affected by the application of the IFRS 16 for the current and
prior year:

2019 2018

£000 £1000

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (1,313) -
Interest expense on leasc liabilities (113} -
Property lease cxpense - (1,029
Expenses relating to short term or low valuc assets leases 29} {16)
Income from the subleasing of right-of-use assets 329 -

At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group was not committed to any short-term leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.3. Leases {continued)

{¢) Operating lease arrangements

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relates to sub-leased office buildings with lease terms between | to 6.5 years. The lease
contracts do not include extension or early termination options. The cash outflows relating to the head leases on these buildings are included
in the amounts disclosed in Note 2.3(c)(1) above.

The Group is not significantly exposed to forcign currency risk as a result of the lease arrangements, as the sub-leascs are deneminated in the
same currency as those of the head leases.

The lessee does not have the option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Matunty analysis of the operating lease payments are presented below:

2019 2018

£'000 L'O0K

Year 1 165 329
Year 2 - 165
Total 165 464

24 Receivables and other assets

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the original invoice less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. A credit loss allowance
for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in the profit or Joss and other when there is objective evidence that the asset js impaired.

Revenug arises from providing access to Iress software, rendering of services or recharging for access to capital markets data. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised over time as the relevant performance obligations identified in a customer contract are satisfied. Refer to Note 1.1 for
further details of revenue recognition.

Where tevenue recognised exceeds billings it results in a contract asset as disclosed in the table below, amd where cash anounts are received
in advanece of revenue recognition it results in a contract liability as disclosed in Note 2.4,
Iress” credit terms are generally 30 days from the date of invoice. As such, the carrying amount of receivables approximates their fair value.

The gross carrying amoun! of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full} to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order 10 comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due

(@) Receivables and other assets comprises.
2019 RIITES
£'000 L1000
Trade receivables 6,991 7,738
Credit loss allowance (232) {440)
6,759 7,298
Contract assets 7173 3036
Prepayments 1,640 1,174
Other Asscts 142 301
15,714 12,009

Refer to Note 3.3 for details of foreign exchange risk arising from financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued}
For the vear ended 31 December 2019

2.4 Receivables and other assets (continued)

{b) Credit loss allowance

The Group applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

Expected credit losses are measured by grouping trade receivables and contract assets based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk characieristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts.

A provision matrix is then determined based on the historic credit loss rate for each group of customers, adjusted for any material expected
changes 1o the future credit risk for that customer group. There were no undiscounted expected credit losses at initial recognition on financial
assets inttially recognised during the period.

The credit loss allowance as at the end of the year is determined as follows:

Provision matrix 2tHY 2008
%o o

1 to 30 days 028 043
30 to 60 days 027 0.88
60 to 90 days . 116 198
Over 90 days 0.51 2.02
Contract assets 0.14 015
Ageing of receivables 2019 2018
£'000 £

1 to 30 days 5,687 5217
30 to 64 days 742 1,346
60 10 90 days 173 174
Over 90 days 389 1,001
Total receivables 6,991 7,738
Contract assets 7,173 3,036
Estimated Credit Loss 2019 20108
£'0HH) £'000

1 to 30 days 16 22
30 to 60 days 2 12
60 to 90 days 2 3
Over 90 days 2 20
Contract assets 10 4
Allowance based on historic credit losses 32 61
Adjustment for expected changes in credit risk™ 200 379
Credit loss allowance 232 440

T Adjustment to reflect the higher credit risk and probability of default relating 1o customers that are over 9¢ days past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 Receivables and other assets (continued)

(o) Movemient in the credit joss allowance

The mosement in the eredit loss allowance dunmy the year is as follows,

2019 2018
£1080 £000
Balance at the beginning of the year {440y 79
Credit loss allowances recognised during the year 712) (431)
Credit loss allowance utilised during the year against irrecoverable trade debtors 280 70
Balance at the end of the year {232) d40)

(d} Qualuy of trade recenables
The quality of trade receivables and thus credit risk is monitored by the ageing of invaiced amounts yet to be received. The ageing at the end
of the year is as follows:

2019 200K
£'000 £1000
Neither past due nor impaired - less than 30 days 5577 5,163
Past due but not impaired:
+31 to 90 days 883 1,501
+91 days 299 634
Impaired 232 440
6,991 7,738

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired comprise customers with a long term record of limely payments and‘or no recent history of
default arising from financial difficulty.

Receivables that are not impaired comprise customers which do not have any objectine evadence that the recenvable may be mipatted Iress has
actively engaged these customers and teisons tor the mvaiees remaining outstanding are bemg actively reselved A credit loss allowance 1~

recognised where:

o lress has identiticd ebjective evidence that an amuount owing mad nol be recon crable, mamlby ansing trom obseryed financial difficelis of

a cusloiney, or
e lress has identified o nisk of eapected eredit loss hased on historical trend of credi losses

) Recenvables with related parties

Related party receivables mainly comprise intercompany accounts with Iress Limited, the ultimate holding company.

2019 20K

£'000 £1000
IRESS Data Pty Lid (fellow subsidiary of Iress Ltd) 3,542 323
IRESS Limited (ultimate parent) 28,928 20434
Quant House UK Limited (fellow subsidiary of Iress Lid) 63 -
IRESS International Holding Pty Ltd (fellow subsidiary of Iress Ltd) 450 448
Receivables with related parties 32,983 21,205

The recelvables are unsecured. merest bearing at marhkel rutes and not considered past due or impaired No eapense fas been recognised in

the current year or prior yvear for bad or eredit allowances in respect of amounts owed by related parties
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.5 Payables and other liabilities

Payables and other liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are recognised at amortised cost.
Liabilities are classified as current where Iress does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months.

Employee related liabilities primarily comprise of employees' annual leave, on-costs and other employee related entitlements.

Conlract liabilities represent amounts received from customers for which revenue has not been carned or recognised.
Due to the short-term nature of current liabilities, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

tay  Payables and other liabilities comprise of

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Current
Trade payables 9207 972
Accruals 1,625 2,136
Audit fees accrual 117 90
Contract liabilities 1,502 2,203
VAT payable 623 972
Employee related liabilities™ 2,124 1,706
Trade payables other 610 603

7,508 8,682

(h 10.3 million ot annual [eave aceruals were reclassihed Irom current provisions to current payables and other habilanes i accordance with FRS 102 paragraph 2%.4.

Refer Note 3.3 for details of foreign exchange risk arising from financial instruments.

Liquidity risk arises from current payables and other liabilities that are payable in less than one year. The Group manages this liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash and current assets to meet the contractual obligations as they arise. Cash flow forecasts are regularly prepared and
monitored 1o ensure that the Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations.

th}  Payables with related parties
Related party payables mainly comprise unsecured intercompany accounts with Iress Limited, the ultimate holding company and Iress
Intermational Holding Pty Ltd, the parent:

2MY 2018

£'000 £000
IRESS Data Pty Ltd (fellow subsidiary of Iress Ltd) 207 513
IRESS Market Technology Canada LP (fcllow subsidiary of Iress Ltd) 13 20
TRESS Limited (ultimate parent) 8,099 7,206
IRESS South Africa (Aust) Pty Ltd (fellow subsidiary of Iress Ltd) - 3
IRESS International Holding Pty Ltd (fellow subsidiary of Iress Ltd) 8,717 6,881
Payables with related parties 17,036 14,623

All outstanding balances with related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis, on commercia! terms available in the market. The fair value
of the related party receivables and payable approximates its carrying valuc due te its short-term nature.

Receivables from/payables to related parties are on demand, unsecured and settled in cash.

No guarantees have been given or reccived.

2.6 Commitments and contingencies

{u) Cupital commizments
No capital expenditure has becn contracted or provided for at balance date (2018: £Nil).

(b} Contingeneies
There arc no material contingent liabilities that have been contracted or provided for at the reporting date (2018: £Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

SECTION 3. DEBT AND EQUITY

3.1 Debt facilities and derivatives

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the event the borrowings are derecognised.

Borrowiny costs are recognised in the profit and ioss in the period iz which they are incurred.

Interest expenses are recagnised using the effective interest rate method.

{a} Octands of horrowangs held by the Group at the end of the year are as (ollows

2019 2018
£'000 1000
Non-current
50 year - Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares issued 26 October 2015, 23,500 23,500
at 6% per annum.
50 year - Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares issued 30 December 36.953 26,953
2016, at 6% per annum.
50 year - Mandatorily Redeernable Conventible Preference Shares issued 9 September
2013, at 6% per annum. Transferred from Apollo ] Australia Pty Ltd as general partner for 33,000 33.000
Iress (AUS) Limited Partnership to Iress International Holding Pty Ltd on 31 October ’ ’
2017
Total borrowings 93,453 93,453

All the above borrowings are with Iress Limited or fellow subsidiaries. The preference shares do not carry any equity component and are
classificd as financial habilities in their entirety. Further disclosure included in note 5.4.

ihy Ikrnaies
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently revalued to fair value at
the end of each reporting period.

The derivative below is an internal cross currency swap between lréss Limited (the ultimate helding company) and Iress UK Limited.

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Assets at fair valve
3 year receive AUD / pay GBP to September 2021 - 434
Liabilities at fair value
3 year receive AUD / pay GBP to September 2021 929 -

The fair value of the derivative is determined by calculating the future cash flows that are estimated based on ferward interest rates and exchange
rates {from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting peried) and contract interest rates, and then discounting the fiture cash flows at
a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties. The latest spot rate is used.

The fair value is classificd as Level 2 as the calculation is bascd on observable inputs. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
mputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or lability, cither direetly (i.¢. 2s prices) or indirectly

(1.¢. derived from prices).

No credit risk adjustments have becn recognised on the fair value of the derivative assets as these are immaterial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.1 Debt facilities and derivatives {continucd)

fey  Contractual matunty analysis

iress

Contractual cash outflow maturity analysis is shown based on undiscounted cash flows. An estimate - based on forward interest rates and
foreign currency rales — has been applied in determining interest and foreign cash outflows (inflows). The actual contractual outflow may vary

1o the amounts disclosed,

31 December 2018 On demand Within 1 year b3 Greater than 3
years years

Outflows/(inflows) £'060 £000 £'000 £1000
50 ycar MRCPS - principal - - - 93,453
50 year MRCPS - interest - 5607 11,214 244,247
3 year cross curreney swap - principal exchange - - (256) -
3 year cToss curTency swap - interest (0 - (415) (726) -
- 5,192 10,232 337,700

31 December 2019 On demand Within I vear 1-3 Greater than 3
vears years

Outilows/(inflows) £000 £'000 £'000 £000
50 year MRCPS - principal - - - 93,453
50 year MRCPS - interest - 5,607 11,214 238,640
3 year cross currency swap - principal exchange ¥ - - 991 -
3 year cross currency swap - interest (' - (39) {29 -
- 5,568 12,176 332,093

it

AULY and pays GBP.

Represents expected net cash exchange in AU that occurs at settlemnent. Under the terms of the swap, the settiements are on a gross basis where Iress receives

The MRCPS are classified as nen-current as they are not callable by the holder and can only be redeemed before maturity at the request of the
issuer. The issuer has no intention of redeeming any or all of the MRCPS within the next 12 months,

(d) Netinterest expense and financing costs tor the vear comprised of the follow ing:

2019 RO
£000 £'000
Interest revenue
Interest received on bank deposits 1 12
Interest received from group undertakings 297 16
Intgrest income on ¢Toss currency swap with group undertakings measured at FVTPL 281 344
Total interest receivable 579 3In
Interest expense and financing costs
Interest expense of lease liabilities (113) -
Interest paid on bank overdraft (28) -
Interest paid on MRCPS measured at amortised cost {(5,607) (5,607)
Net (losses)/gains on cross curtency swaps with group undertaking measured at FVTPL {1,419) 293
Total interest payable {7,167) (5,314)
Net interest expense and financing costs (6,588) (4,942)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.2 Share capital

iress

2089 2018
Number of shares  Number of shares
00w 000
IRESS UK Holdings Limited
Authorised, Issued and fully paid at the end of the year:
50,275,706 Class A Ordinary shares at £1 each 50,276 50,276
50,276 50,276

‘There are no restrictions attached to A Ordinary Sharcs,

3.3 Managing financial risks

(a) Markelt tisks
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises from its variable interest rate borrowings and tloating rate ¢ross cutrency swaps.

Intevest rate sensitivity unalvsis

A sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for derivative instruments at the reporting date. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whale year.

A decrease in the benchmark UK interest rates of 50 basis points {0.5%}. with all other tactors held constant, would result in a decrease in the
annual net interest cost of the Group by £0.165 million (2018: £0.468 million) with a cormesponding increase in profit. This should not be
considered a prediction, and actual results may be different from this estimate. The sensitivities are considered a reasonable approximation of

possible changes,

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk mainly from a cross currency derivative. Additional foreign currency risk arises from cash
balances, receivables and payables denominated in foreign currency. Therefore, the Group is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The
Group’s exposurc to foreign currcney arise from monetary balances in a currency other than the functional currency of each of the Group’s
subsidiary (assessed from the context of that subsidiary).

The material exposure 1o foreign currency movements arises from balances denominated in AUD dotlars as summarised below:

2019 201K
AUD/GBP AUD GBP
Carrying value exposure Currying value Cxpusure
£'000 £004 1000 KN
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,399 - 2,005 -
Trade receivables 6.759 - 7.298 -
Receivables with related patties 32,983 h 21205 N
Derivative asset - - 434 33,256
Total financial assets 42,141 - 30,942 33,256

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 907 - 972 -
Payables with related parties 17,036 - 14,623 -
Derivative liability 929 32,009 - -
Borrowings non-current 93,453 - 93453 -
Total financial liabilities 112,325 32,009 109,048 -
32,009 33,256

Net exposure to FX risk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.3  Managing financial risks (continued)

{a) Market risks (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuations in the AUD. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% change in the AUD against
the GBP.

2019 2018
£7000 £
Impact of 1% change appreciation of GBP to profit and loss and equity {320) (333)

by Capital nish management
Capital risk management 1s monitored and managed at the Iress Limited group level. As disclosed in the Iress Limited annual report, the Iress
Limited group manages its capital to cnsurc it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to stakcholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the lress Limited group may adjust the dividends amount paid to sharcholders, retum capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Iress Limited group is not subject to any regulatory capital requirements.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in notes 3.1 and 3.3 afier deducting cash and bank balances) and
equity of the Group (comprising issued capital disclosed in note 3.2 and reserves and retained eamings).

Management reviews the capital structure of the Group on a regular basis. As part of this review, the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital is considered.

The Group's year end gearing ratio is outlined below:

2019 2008

£000 £1000

Debt 93,453 93,453
Less cash (2,399) (2.003)
Net debt 91,054 91,448
Total cquity 156,802 148,100
Net debt plus total equity 247,856 239,548
Gearing ratio 36.7% 38.2%

1" Measured as borrowings excluding net derivative liabilities/assets less cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

SECTION 4. OTHER DISCLOSURES

4.1 Taxation
Total income tax expense or benefit comprises current and deferved tax recognised in the Statement of Profit of Loss in the period.

Current tax

Current tax comprises expected tax payable/receivable on the entity’s taxable income/loss which is recognised in the Statement of Profit of
Loss in the cutrent year, as well as any adjustments to tax payable/receivable recognised in the current year which relate to taxable income:loss
recognised in the Statement of Profit of Loss in prior years

Current tax is measured using the applicable income tax rates which are enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax represents the movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities which have been recogniscd in the period and which are attributable
to amounts recogniscd in the Statement of Profit of Loss in the current year, as well as amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit of Loss
in prior years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
recognised for financial reporting purposes and the tax base of assets and liabilities recognised for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temperary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be realised. Future taxable profits are projected using the 5 year annual
operating plan approved by the Iress Group board.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all assessable temporary differences as required by accounting standards.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates which are expected to apply when the deferred 1ax asset'liability is expected to be realised‘settled
based on laws which have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax also reflects the tax
consequences flowing from the manner in which the entity expects, at the reporting date, 10 realise or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Criticul ucconnting judygemenl with respect to deferrved tax balances.

I he recogniion and measurement of deterred tax requires the application of judgement m assessing the amount, liming and probability of
future t1axable profits and repatriation of retained earnings. These factors affect the determination of the appropriate rates of tax 10 apply and
the recoverability of deferred tax assets. These judgements are influenced, inter alia, by factors such as estimates of future revenue, operating
costs and future capital expenditure.

() Income tax for the year inctudimg current and deterred tay 1s as follows:
2019 20K
£000 0060
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Current income tax
Current income tax charge 3,810 2674
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of the previous year 197 (643)
4,007 2,031
Deferred income tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 77 45
Adjustments in respect of deferred income tax of the previous year (170} (371}
(93) (326}
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 3,914 1,708
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.1 Taxation {continucd)

th} Reconciliation of profit before meome tax 1o total tax expense 1s as tollows:

iress

2019 2018
£'000 11000
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 13,225 13,842
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2018: 19%) 2,513 2630
Income tax adjustments:
Effect of non-assessable income and non-deductible expenscs 1,382 1,087
Employee Share Plan (20) (1,049)
Prior year adjustments for current tax of prior years 156 (643)
Prior year adjustment for deferred tax of prior ycars (129) 37
Other 2 51
Income tax expense 3,914 1,705

{¢) Deterred tax assets and labihitics anse from:

Charged Charged to Closing balance

For the year ended Opening balance fo income OCFEquity
31 December 2018 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Deferred tax assets

Plant and equipment 1,264 (74) - 1,190

Provisions and accruals 41 10 - 51

Carry forward tax lossecs 1,250 (487) - 763

Share based payments - 416 12 428
Total deferred tax assets 2,555 (135) 12 2,432
Deferred tax liabilities

Computer software (286) 82 - (204)

Intangibles (1.833) 379 - {1,454)
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,119) 461 - (1,658)

Charged Charged to .

For the vear ended Opening balance to incugmﬁ' ()('I!l‘[l:quil)' Closing balance
31 December 2019 £'600 £000 £'000 £000
Deferred tax assets

Plant and equipment 1,190 (139) - 1,051

Provisions and accruals 51 10 - 61

Carry forward tax losses 763 (377} - 386

Share based payments 428 228 - 656

Leases - (128) 139 11
Total deferred tax assets 2,432 {406) 139 2,165
Deferred tax liahilities

Computer software (204) 109 - {95)

Intangibles {1,454) 389 - {1,065)
Total deferred tax liabilities {1,658) 498 - (1,160)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.1 Taxation (continued)

(dy Unused tax losses meureed during the sear

At the reporting date, the Group has unused tax losses of £2.0 million (2018: £4.0 million) available for offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised for all unused tax losses of £2.0 million (2018: £4.0 million).

te} Factors that may affect fiture charges

The UK corporation Lax rate reduced from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. On 11 March 2020, the Cerporation Tax main ratc for
the financial year beginning | April 2020 was maintained at 19%, rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020. as was previously
substantively enacted on 6 September 2016. The charge to Corporation Tax and the main rate was also sel al 19% for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2021.The prevailing rate of corporation tax at the Statement of Financial Position date at which the deferred tax will reverse
is therefore 17% and this has been applied to calculate the deferred tax position at 31 December 2019 (2018: 17%).

4.2 General information and audit exemption of qualifying subsidiaries

General information

Iress UK Holdings Limited (“the Company™) is a private company limited by shares, and incorporated in England and Wales, under the
Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office is given on page 3. The nature of the Company’s operations and its principal activities
are set oul in the Strategic and Directors” Report on pages 4 to 9 Iress UK Holdings Limited group is the smallest group for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared.

The parent company is Iress International Holdings Proprictary Limited, a for-profit entity registered in Australia.

Iress Limited is the ultimate parent and controlling party of the Group, which is incorporated in Australia and is a for-profit entity listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange. The Iress Limited group is the largest group of which the Company is a member that prepares group accounts
including the results of the Company.

The business registered address of Iress limited is:

Level 16,

385 Bourke Street,
Melbourne,
VICTORIA,
3000,

Australia.

Copies of the Iress Limited financial statements are available from the Iress Limited website: www iress.com
Iress UK Holdings Limited does not form part of any other sub-consolidations in the Iress Group.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the
Croup operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in Note 4.3,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.2 General information and audit exemption of qualifving subsidiaries (continued)

Audit exemption of qualifying subsidiuries

The subsidiaries of the Company are exempt from the requirements of this Act relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section
479C CAO06. The following subsidiaries, all incorporated it England and Wales, are exempt from the requirements of the CA 2006 relating to
the audit of accounts under scction 479A (section 4794(2i(d)):

Subsidiary name Reg‘is!ration Parent Company Class of Shares Sharcholding
Number Y
TRESS (UK) Limited 06836280 IRESS UK Holdings Limited Ordinary shares 100%
TRESS FS Group Limited 05455415 TRESS (UK} Limited Ordinary shares 100%
TIRESS FS Limited 02958430 IRESS FS Group Limited Ordinary shares 100%
IRESS Mortgage Services Limited 03598058 IRESS FS Limited Ordinary shares 100%
IRESS Portal Limited (2596452 IRESS FS Limited Ordinary shares 100%
IRESS Technology Limited 07784841 IRESS FS Limited Ordinary shares 100%
Proquote Limited 03851830 IRESS FS Limited Ordinary shares 100%
IRESS Web Limited 05501526 IRESS FS Limited Ordinary shares 100%
. _ . Ordinary "A" Shares 100%
IRESS Solutions Limited 03896352 IRESS FS Limited o djnag B Shares 100%
TrigoldCrystal Limited (43598974 IRESS Solutions Limited Ordinary shares 100%
Pulse Software Systems Limited 08230913 IRESS FS Limited 8:::::: g :::::: :ggf;")
Ordinary Shares 100%
Pulse Software Management Limited 03188887 Pulse Software Systems Limited Ordinary "A" Shares 100%
Ordinary "B" Shares 100%
O&M Systems Limited* 08739985 IRESS F$ Limited Ordinary sharcs 100%
O&M Life & Pensions Limited* 02717535 O&M Systems Limited Ordinary shares 100%

n Percentage halding 1s based on [ress LK Holdings Limited effective holding interest

* On 10 March 2020 the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of O&M Systems Limited, a UK registered company which provides
solutions for advisers involved in pension and investment planning. Q&M Systems Limited holds 100% of the share capital of &M Life &
Pensions Limited.

The holdings in subsidiaries by the parent company is the same as that of the Group companies. The subsidiaries hsted above are included in
these consolidated financial statements.

The business registered address of all the above listed subsidiaries is:

I Kingmaker Court
Warwick Technology Park
Warwick

CV34 6DY

United Kingdom
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
For the yvear ended 31 December 2019

4.2 General information and audit exemption of qualifving subsidiaries (continued)

Details of the subsidiaries and principal activities are as tollows:
e Iress (UK) Limited is the holding company of Iress FS Group Limited,
e lIress FS Group Limited is the holding company of Tress FS Limited.

e [ress FS Limited's principal activity during the year was the development and support of software for the financial services indusiry through
its subsidiaries as detailed below.

® Proquote Limited provides professional financial data and trading systems and the distribution of financial market data.

e Iress Portal Limited provides an online companson markel place (Exchange Portal) that faciiitates product quotes and subsequent
transactions between buyers {distributors) and sellers {providers) of financial products.

e Iress Mortgage Services Limited is a non-trading dormant company.

e Iress Solutions Limited is a non-trading dormant company.

e Iress Technology Limited is a non-trading dormant company.

» Iress Web Limitedis 2 non-trading dormant company.

®  Trigold Crystal Limited is a non-trading dormant company.

& Pulse Software Systems Limited is a non-trading dormant company.

e Pulse Software Management Limited is a non-trading dormant company.

& * O&M Systems Limited is the holding company of O&M Life & Pensions Limited

e *O&M Life & Pensions Limited provides solutions for advisers involved in pension and investment planning.

* On 10 March 2020 the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of O&M Systems Limited, a UK registered company which provides
solutions for advisers involved in pension and investment planning. O&M Systems Limited holds 100% of the share capital of O&M Life &
Pensions Limited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation

This is the general purpose financial report for [ress UK Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group’ or ‘Iress’) for the year ended 31 December 2019 It.

®  has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2606, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

was authorised for issue by the Directors on 1 December 2020;

has been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value;

has all amounts presented in UK pound sterling. unless otherwise stated; and

has amounts rounded off to the nearest thousand pounds (GBP), unless otherwise stated.

fa) Adoption of new standards

The Group has adopited all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual reporting periods on or after 1 January 2019,

None of these standards have had a material impact on Iress in the current or future reporting perieds or on foreseeable future transactions.

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019,

Other than [FRS 16 Leases, their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial
statements.

The impact of adopting IFRS 16 Leases on the Group is described in detail below.

113 IFRS 16 Leases ovenview
IFRS 16 is effective for years commencing 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance
leases as required by LAS 17 Leases {“IAS 177) and instead introduces a single lessee accounting model.

Applying the model, a lessee is required to recognise:
e assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value; and
e amortisation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

As a tessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred
significantly all of the nisks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlving asset to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 from | January 2019 and elected to apply the modified retrospective approach to their real estate leases. For these
leases, which were classified as operating leases under 1AS 17, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at the
transition date (1 January 2019).

The Group elected to apply the recognition exemption for leases of low-valuc asscts or short term leases including office equipment such as
printers, coffec machines and other information technology related equipment for use by staff in its offices.

At transition, lcase liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at either:

& their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application — the Group applied this approach to its property leases; or

& anamount cqual to the lcase hability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lcasc payments

See nole 2.3 for more information on the effect of IFRS 16 on the financial performance and position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financijal Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation {continued)

ta) Adopuion of new standards {continued)
(i) IFRS 16 Leases averview {continued)

The Group used the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17:

®  applied a single discount rate 1o a portfolio of lcases with similar characteristics;

®  adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of any recognised 1AS 37 onerous contract provision immediately before the date of initial
application, as an alternative to an impairment review;

e applied the exemption not to Tecognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with lease ternmns less than |2 months;

e excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application: and

e used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options 10 extend or terminate the lease.

The net effect on 1 January 2019 of the recognition of the new right-of-use assets and lease liabihities, adjusted for deferred tax and the reversal
of the existing straight-line lcase and incentive liability, werc recogniscd against retained carnings. The impact is disclosed below in Note 4.3

(a}(iii).

01y Significant accounting peficies resulting from the adoption of JFRS 16 { caves
The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The poficy applicable frem | Junuary 2019

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 January 2019.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys

the right to control the use of an identified assct for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

e the conitract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicidy, and shouid be physically distinct or
represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset
is not identified:

. the Group has the righi to obtain substantially all of the econemic benefits from the use of the assel throughout the penod of use; and

®  the Group has the right to dircct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant
to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purposc the asset is used
is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

«  the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
% the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpese it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each

leas¢ component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of land and buildings in wlhicl it is a lessec, the Group
has elected not to separate non-lease components and instead accounts for the lease and non-leasc components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation (continued)

(4) Adoption of new standards (continucd)
(i) Sigmuficant accounting polcies resulting from the udoption of IFRS 16 Louse (contmued)

Policy applicable before I Fanuan 2009

iress

For contracts entered into before | January 2019, the Group determined whether the arrangement was or contained a leasc hased on the

assessment of whether:
+  fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and

*  the arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if one of the foltowing were met:
«  the Group had the ability or right t¢ operate the assel while obtaining or controlling mere than an insignificant amount of the output:
& the Group had the ability or right (o control physical access to the assel while obtaining or controlling more than an insigniftcant

amount of the ouiput; or

facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take mere than an insignificant amount of the output,

and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current market price per unit of output.

Refer to Note 2.3 Leases for disclosures on the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on the Group.
{i1n) Impact on the tinancial stements

Group as a lessee

The table below summarises the impacts of the adoption application of IFRS 16 tor each line item on the Group's consolidated financial

statements:

Impact on assets. haklites and cquity v the Statement of Financial Position as a1 | fanuary 2019

Impact of changes in IFRS 16 accounting policy

Balances as at [ January 3019 Balances prior to

Accounting policy
£ poie] Balance as restated

adoption adjustments
£'000 £000 £'000
Right-of-use assets™ - 3,660 5,660
Lease liabilities non-current™ (6,408} {6,408)
Deferred tax assets® 2432 139 2,571
Retained eamings® {97,824} 609 (97,215}

It resulted in a decrease in other expenses and an increase in depreciation and interest expense.

1 January 2019,

See note

The application of [FRS 16 (o leases previously classified as operating leases under [AS 17 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Impact of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as a result of the recognition of the right-ef-use-assets and the leasc liabilities

Tmpact of adopting the modified retrospective approach under IFRS 16 in which the cumulative effect of imtial application is recognised in retained eamnings a1

2.3 for more information on the effect of IFRS 16 on the financial performance and position of the Group.

freas UK HOLBINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019



iress

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Adoption ot new ~tandards (conunued;
tii} Impact on the financial statements (continued)

Impaet on the CGroup s consolidated statement of cash flows

Under IAS 17, all lease payments on operating leases were presented as part of cash flows from operating activities. Consequently, the net cash
generated by operating activities has increased by £1.502 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 and net cash used in financing activities
increased by the same amount.

The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have an impact on net cash flows.

Group as bessor

The Group. as lessor, continued to classify its sub-leasc agreements as operating leases and there were no changes to the accounting treatment.
The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of “Other
Income’.

tb)  Accounting standards m issue bul not vet etfectise
A1 the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting periods and have not yet been applied by the Group within this financial repont:

IFRS 3 Business combinations (amendments) Definition of a business '

IFRS 10 and TAS 128 {amendments) - Sule or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'!

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts - Measurement of insurance liabilities'™

IAS land IAS & (Amendments) Definition of Material’

“* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. with earlier application permirted.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2021.

Management have assessed the impact of the adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations in future periods on the financial
statements of the Group.

Management does not believe these Accounting Standards and Interpretations will have a material impact in future periods on the financial
statements of the Group at this point in time.

9] Summarny of general accounning policies
The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report,

i) Consvhdation
The consohidated financial statements include the financial statements of the company. and the information and results of each subsidiary from
the date on which the Company obtains control and until such time as the Company ceases to control such entity.

An entity is controlled when Iress is exposed to, or has nghts to, variable retums from involvement with the entity and hag the ability 1o affect
those retumns through power over the entity.

When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

In reporting the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, and unreafised profifts or losses within the Group
are eliminated in full.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation (continued)

{€) Sllmmur_\' of general accounting policies {contmuced’

il)  Forcign curreney translation
The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each Statement of Financial Position date,
monelary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carmied at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translaicd at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histonical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the Statement of Financial Position date. Income and expensc items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that peried, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recoghised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity
(attributed to non-controliing interests as appropriate).

Foreign currency transactions
All foreign curtency transactions during the financial year are brought to account using the exchange rate in effect at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency monctary items at the reporting date are translated at the exchange rate existing at the reporting date.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except that exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned or likely to occur, which form part of the net investment
in a foreign operation, are recognised in the foreign currency wranslation reserve in the consolidated financial statements and recognised in
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

Fareign operations

Asscts and liabjlities of foreign operations are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translaied at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Any exchange differences are recognised in equity. On the disposal of a
foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation are reclassified to profit or loss.

nr) Revenue

Revenue Is generated mostly from UK customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related
taxes Revenue is reduced for estimated customer retums, rebates and other similar allowances The Group’s revenue mainly arises from
services rendered or access to software.

Licence revenue from a contract to provide access to use of the software is recognised once access is granted and spread over the licence peried.

Revenue from a contract to provide services 1s recognised by reference to the performance obligation of the contract.

The performance obligation of the contract is determined as follows:

e installation fees are recognised by reference to the performance obligation of the installation, determined as the proportion of the total
time expected to install that has elapsed at the Statement of Financial Position date;

¢  revenue from time and material contracts is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours are delivered and direct expenses incurred.

Interest income is accried on a time proportion basts by reference to the principal balance outstanding and the interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation (continued)

() Sumary of general accounting poheies (continued)

v} Loing concern
As at 31 December 2019, the Group is in a net current asset position of £23.401 million (2018: £10.159 million). The Group’s total cusrent
assets excluding net related party trade receivables exceeded its total current liabilities by £7.454 million (2018: £3.577 million).

The Directors of Iress Limited have provided a letter of support to Iress UK Holdings Linited and sts subsidiaries which statcs that iress
Limited:
& continues (o support and provide additional finance to the Group for at least i2 months; and
®  will not demand payment of Joans unti such time as the subsidiary is able to r¢pay such amounts without detriment to its operation as a
going concern.

The Directors of fress UK Holdings Limited have a reasonable expectation that the Group has aceess to adequate resources o continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. As part of their comprehensive assessment of whether the Group is a going concern, the
Directors have reviewed Group cash flow and solvency forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date of authorising the financial
statements.

31 Accounting for non-controllimg mierests

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-centrolling
interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is atiributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the nen-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

vy Business combimations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquirec and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related 10 employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively, and

L] axsets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration ransferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, afler reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any). the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the ‘measurement peniod” (which cannot exceed one vear from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3  Basis of preparation (continued)

14 Summary of general accounting policies (continued)

v1) Business combinauons (continued}

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair valuc of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration thar is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously-held interests in the acquired entity is remeasured to its acquisition
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts arc adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), or additional assets or habilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained abomt facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

viny Goedwill
Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other asscts of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the antributable amount of goedwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss en disposal.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

vy Imparment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwll

At each Statement of Financial Position date, the Group reviews the canrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication cxists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated to determine the extent of the impainment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generaling units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

An inlangible asset with an indefinite wseful hife is tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows

are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ttme value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 20119

4.3  Basis of preparation (continued)

(€} Summary of general accounting policies (continued)

Vi Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excludmg goodwill {continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(o1 cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impaimment loss been recognised for the assel {or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 15 carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

ix) Financiul instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position when the Group becotnes a party to the
contrachual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities. as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
antribmable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss,

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Group will account for such difference as follows:

® if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or lability or based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised as a gain or loss on initial recognition (i.e. day ] profit or loss).

+ in all other cases. the fair value will be adjusied to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by
including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss such that it reaches a value of zero at the time when the entire
contract can be valued using active market quotes or venfiable objective market information. Depending on the type of financial instrument.
the Group can adopt one of the following policies for the amortisation of day | gain or loss:

e calibraie unobservable inputs to the transaction price and recognise the deferred gain or loss as the best estimates of those unobservable
inputs change based on obscrvable information; or

& rclease the day | gain or loss in a reasonable fashion based on the facts and gircumstances (i.e. using eithor straight-line or non-linear
amortisation).

Financial gssets

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. All financial assets are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs, when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Interest resulting from
holding financial assets is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis.

Louns and receivables are measured subsequent to initial recognition at amortised cost using the effective interest method., less provision for
impairment, A credit loss allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables 1s made when objective evidence 13 received that the
Company will not be able te collect all amounts due 1o it in accordance with the original terms of the receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and confract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contracl assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
reccivables for the same types of contracts.

A provision matrix is determined based on historic credit loss rate for each group of customers. adjusted for any material expected changes to
the customers future credit risk.

The amount of the impaurment is determined as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated futurc

cash flows, discounted at the effective rate computed at initial recognition. Any change in value through impairment or reversal of impairment
is recognised in the statement of comprehiensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation (continued)

() Summiary ol general accounting poheics continued )

ix) Financial instruments (contintucd)

A financial asset is derecognised only where the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the asset expire or the financial asset is transferred,
andg that transfer qualifies for de-recognition. A financial asset is transferred if the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset have
been transferred or the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients. A financial asset that is transferred qualifies for de-recognition if the Company transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and on-demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Share capital represents the nominal value of equity shares issued. Share premium represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value
of the consideration received for equity shares, net of direct issue costs.

Retained eamings include all current and prior year results as disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income. Retained earnings include
realised and unrealised profits. Profits are considered unrealised where they arise from movements in the fair valuc of investment properties
that are considered to be temporary rather than permanent.

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafis are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the statement of
comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method and are added to the carmying amount of the instrument to the extent that they
are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Leases

Group as lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the carlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the tright-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment lesses, if any, and adjusted
for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 Dccember 2019

4.3 Basis of preparation (continued)

te) Summary of general accounting policies {continued)

Leuases (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured ai the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commiencement date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of otlice and information technology
¢quipment that have a lease term of 12 months or less or for leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associared
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(rroup as lessor
The Group, as lessor, recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as pan
of ‘Other Income’.

(d) Key sources of judgements and esbimation uneertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. If in the future such estimates and assumptions, which are
based on the Directors’ best judgement at the date of preparation of the financial statements, deviate from the actual circumstances, the original
estimates and assumptions will be modified as appropriate in the period in which the circumstances change.

Judgements
The areas where a higher degree of yjudgement or complexity arises arc discussed in Note 1.1 relating to revenue recognition on long term
contracts , Note 2.1{b) relating to goodwill impairment testing and Note 4.1 relating to recognition and measurement of deferred tax.

Estimates
Significant estimates made in relation to the impairment testing for goodwill. Refer to note 2.1{b} for further details.
There are no other areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements.

4.4 Events subsequent to financial position date

Apart {rom those listed below, there have been no matter or circumstances which have arisen since the end of the financial year which have
significantly affected. or may significantly affect, the operations of the Ciroup, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group
in subsequent vears.

As at 3] December 2019 China had aterted the World Health Organisation (WHO) of several cases of an unusual form of pneumonia in Wuhan,
However, substantive information about what has now been identified as COVID-19 only came 1o light in early 2020. There has been no
signiticant impact of COVID-19 noted on the Group’s performance (o date Given the high proportion of recurming revenue and cash generative
nature of the business the Group does not expect a significant direct impact. The Group is exposed to indirect economic impacts which are
harder to predict and are being closely monitored.

On 10 March 2020, Iress completed the acquisition of 100 of the share capital of O&M Systems Ltd (0O&M), who provide a system for
pension and investment planning.

During February 2020 and June 2020, the Group entered into 10 year lease agreements for two new properties and a 10 year extension to an
existing lease. All leases have a 5 year break clause. There is no significant financial impact on the group as the new leases replaced existing

property leases with similar terms.

Om 28 April 2020, an in specie dividend of £13.960m was declared and paid.
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Company Financial Statements

Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018

Notes £1000 £000
ASSETS
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 1 456
Receivables with related panties 51 2,780 2373
Total current assets 2,781 2,829
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 52 226,253 226,253
Redeemable preference shares 53 32,641 32.641
Total non-current assets 258,894 258,894
Total assets 261,675 261,723
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables with related parties 51 37,121 31,535
Total current liabilities 37,121 31,535
Non-current liabilities
Debt facilities 54 93,453 93,453
Total non-current liabilities 93,453 93,453
Total liabilities 130,574 124,988
Net assets 131,101 136,735
EQUITY
Issued capital 32 50,276 50,276
Retained earnings 80,825 86,459
Total equity 131,101 136,735
Revenue “ -
Total comprehensive loss for the period (5,634) (5,618)

The notes on pages 61 10 63 form pari of these financial statements.

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own Statement of Profit of Loss for the year. The
Company reportcd a loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 of £5.6 million (2018: loss of £5.6 million).

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

A Morgan
Director
Warwick

The parent company financial statements on pages 59 to 63 were authorised for issue by the Directors on | December 2020

Iress UK Holdings Limited (Registered company number: 08612198)
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Company Financial Statements (continucd)

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019

iress

Issued
capital  Accumulated profit Total equity
Notes £000 £'000 £100
Balance at 1 Jannary 2018 50,276 92,077 142,353
Loss for the year - (5.618) (5,618)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - {5,618) (5,618)
Balance at 31 December 2018 50,276 86,459 136,735
::::::: Accumulated profit Total cyuity
Notes £'004 £000 £'004
Balance at 1 January 2019 50,276 86,459 136,735
Loss for the year - (5,634) (5,634)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (5,634) (5,634)
Balance at 31 December 2019 50,276 $0,825 131,101
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

SECTION 5. NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.1 Trade receivables and pavables with related parties

All outstanding balances with related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis, on commiercial terms available in the market.
Receivables from/payables to related partics are on demand, unsecured and settled in cash.

Interest is charged on related party receivables overdue for more than 90 days at the prevailing markel interest rates.

No expense has been recognised in the current year or prior year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties.
No guarantecs have been given or received.

The fair value of the related party reccivables and payable approximates its carrying value due to its short-term nature.

5.2 Investments in subsidiaries

Refer note 4.2 for listing of subsidiaries held. The Company holds these investments 100%.

There were no changes in the subsidiaries held during the year. The value of the investment in the subsidiaries has remained the same during the

year.

5.3 Redeemable preference shares

‘The Redeemable Preference Shares (“RPS™) are 1ssued by Iress (UK) Limited As at 31 December 2019, the RPS holder is Tress UK Holdings

Limited (“the RPS Holder™}.

The RPS are ranked ahead of ordinary shares in terms of dividend, capital retum or distribution payments to the holder of any other class of shares

in the capital of the Company and are therefore classified as assets. Each redeemable preference share carmies one vote.

For so long as the RPS Holder has Ordinary Shares and RPS in issue, the rights, privileges and restrictions attaching to Ordinary Shares and RPS

shall be as follows:

An RPS confers on the RPS Helder the right to receive a cumulative preferential dividend pro rata to their shareholding. in priority to any
dividend, capital return or distribution payment to the holder of any other class of shares in the Company.

On a return or reduction of capital, on a winding up or otherwise the assets of the Company available for distribution to the shareholders shall
be applied in priority to the RPS Holder, pro rata to their shareholdings, only to the extent of the aggregate redemption amount for all RPS on
issue.

Iress (UK) Limited may elect in its discretion Lo redeem some or all of the RPS any time prior to the maturity date by giving the RPS Holder
written notice in accordance with Article 35.2{c)v).

Upon payment or salisfaction of the redemption amount in respect of an RPS on the redemption date, the rights conferred and the restrictions
imposed in relation to that RPS under the RPS terms will no longer have effect. Any amount payable to the RPS Holder in respect of an RPS
{including a redemption amount), must be paid in immediately available funds into the account nominated by the RPS Holder. The RPS Holder
have no rights to set off any amounts owing by the Company against any claims owing te it by Iress (UK) Limited in respect of the RPS. The
redemption amount in relation to an RPS at a given time is the issue price plus any accrued but unpaid RPS dividends on that RPS at that time.
Iress (UK) Limited may, without the authority, assent or approval of the RPS Helder, amend or add to the RPS terms where the amendment or
addition, in the reasonable opinion of Iress (UK) Limited is necessary to comply with the provisions of any statute or requirements of any
statutory authority.

Iress (UK) Limited may by ordinary resolution declare dividends, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of these Articles, and the
Directors may decide to pay interim dividends. Subject to Article 35.2{a){i), a dividend must not be declared unless the Directors have made a
recommendation as to its amount. Such a dividend must not exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

8.4 Debt facilities

Interest-bearing bank leans and overdrafts are imtially recognised at the value of the amount received, net of attributable transaction costs
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any differences between cost and redemplion value
being recognised in the Company Profit and Loss Account over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Borrowings comprisc the 50 year Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares issued 9 September 2013 of £33.0 million, 50 year
Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Prefer¢nce Shares issued 26 October 2015 of £23.5 million and 50 year Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible
Preference Shares issued 30 December 2016 of £36.9 million. These bortowings are unsecured at an interest raie of 6% per annum. The preference
shares do not carry any equity component and are classified as financial liabilities in their entirety.

Further disclosure included in note 3.1.

The rights, privileges and restrictions attached to MRCPS are as follows:

e An MRCPS confers on the Holder the right to receive unfranked cumuiative preferential dividends.

. On a return or reduction of capital, on a winding up or otherwise, the Holders of MRCPS shalt be entitled to an amount equal to the
nominal capital paid up on the MRCPS and any accrued and unpaid dividends.

e Upon payment or satisfaction of the redemption amount in respect of an MRCPS on the redemption date, the rights conferred and the
restrictions imposed in relation to that MRCPS under the MRCPS terms will no longer have effect. Any amount payable to the MRCPS
Holder in respect of an MRCPS (including a redemption amount), must be paid in immediately available funds into the account
nominated by the MRCPS Holder.

o MRCPS are convertible (including early redemption} inte ordinary shares only by the issuer (on demand) by giving a signed conversion
notice to the MCRPS holder.

8.5 Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006, The Company meets the definition of a
qualifying entity under FRS 100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements issued by the FRC. Accordingly, these financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Iress UK Holdings Limited (the Company) is a public company limited by shares incorperated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act
2006 and is registered in England and Wales The address of the Company s registered office is shown on page 3

Principat Activities
The company’s principal activity 1s to act as an investment holding company

The preparation of the financial statements requires the {ompany to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, If in the future such estimates and assumptions, which ar¢ based on the
Directors” best judgement at the date of preparation of the financial statements, deviate from the actual circumstatices, the original estimates and
assumptions will be modified as appropriate in the period in which the circumstances change.

Judgements
The value of investments is the key judgement for the Company. Note 2.1 refers to the work carmed out to confirm that no impairment of Group
goodwill is required. The value of investments in the Company did not require impairment, as the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating

Unit (C{GU) exceeded its carrying value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5.5 Basis of preparation (continued)

Accounting policies
The parent company’s principal accounting policies have been applied consistently during the year.
A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies 1s set out below:

fi) Eyemprons
The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not presented a Profit and Loss
Account for the Company alone.

As permiticd by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to share-based
payment, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash
flow statement, standards not yet effective, certain disclosure in respect of revenue from contracts with customers and certain related party
transactions.

FHE) fRy estatentts th stehsidiarios and ,m{m Verif ey
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

(iti} Receivables and pey abics
Debtors are recogmsed initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment.
Payables and other liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Subsequent to initial measurement, these are recognised at amortised cost.

fv ) Forcign currencies

The Company’s lunctional currency is the British Pound Sterling as the Company is a hotding entity of UK trading companies.

To remain consistent with the presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements. the company financial statements have been presented
in GBP sterhng.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on the date of transaction. At the Statement of Financial Position date, monctary
assets and liabilitics that arc denominated in forcign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the Statement of Financial Position date.

) . irfnplmn of ew \!mu/ul ey
The Company has adopted all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard (IASB)
that are relevant 1o its operations and mandatorily effective for annual reporting perieds on or after 1 January 2019.
None of these standards have had a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods or on foreseeable future transactions.

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB}
that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or afler | January 2019,

(v [FRS [0 Leases overaew
As the Company docs not lease any properties, the adoption of IFRS 16 had no impact on the Company's financial statements and the Company’s
statermient of cash flows.

Subseguent Events

Apart from the below, there has been no matter or circumstance that has arisen singe the end of the financial year which has significantly affected,
or may significantly affect, the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in futurc financial
years.

As at 31 December 2019 China had alerted the World Health Organisation (WHO) of several cases of an unusual form of pneumonia in Wuhan.
However, substantive information about what has now been identified as or COVII-19 onlty came to light in carly 2020. There has been ho
significant impact of COVID-19 noted on the Company’s performance to date. Given the nature of the business the Company does not expect a
significant direct impact. The Company is exposed to indirect economic impacts that are harder to predict and are being closely monitored.

On 28 April 2020, an in specie dividend of £13.960m was declared and paid.
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